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Suite 10
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DE 23-039
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APPEARANCES: (Cont i n u e d)
Reptg. Residential Ratepayers:
Donald M Kreis, Esq., Consumer Adv.
M chael Crouse, Esg.
Office of Consumer Advocate
Reptg. New Hanpshire Dept. of Energy:
Paul B. Dexter, Esq.
Matt hew C. Young, Esqg.
Al exandra K. Ladwi g, Esq.
(Regul atory Support Division)
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PROCEEDI NG

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Good norni ng.
' m Chai rman Gol dner. |'m here with Comm ssioner
Si mpson and Comm ssioner Chattopadhyay.

This is the continued hearing for the
Depart ment of Energy's Motion to Dism ss the
Conpany's Rate Case Petition, as schedul ed by the
Comm ssion's procedural order issued on
January 8th, 2024.

We take note of the Joint Exhibit and
W tness List filed by the Conmpany on
January 16t h. It proposes two four-person
wi t ness panels, one for the Conpany and one for
t he Department of Energy. It is our presunption
that, despite the DOE w tnesses being listed
second, the DOE panel would, in fact, go first,
as the DOE is the moving party for this Mdtion to
Di sm ss.

If there's any objection to this
approach, or to the Hearing Exhibits 6, 7, and 8,
we ask that these objections be raised when the
parties make their appearances.

We' Il now proceed with appearances,

begi nning with the Department of Energy, the

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000005




N

$> w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

Attachment A

nmovi ng party.

MR. DEXTER: Good norning, M.
Chai rman, Comm ssioners. Paul Dexter, appearing
on behal f of the Department of Energy. [|'m
j oi ned today by Co-Counsel WMatthew Young and
Al exandra Ladwi g.

We have no objection to our w tnesses
taking the stand first, and we have no objection
to the exhibits that were proposed by Liberty.

CHAlI RMAN GOLDNER: Thank you, Attorney

Dext er .
The Office of the Consumer Advocate?
MR. KREI'S: Good norning, M. Chairman,
Comm ssioners. |'m Donald Kreis, the Consunmer

Advocate. Wth me today is our Staff Attorney,
M chael Crouse.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Very good.

The Trustees of Dartnouth Coll ege?

MR. GETZ: Good nmorning, M. Chairman
and Comm ssioners. |'m Tom Getz, fromthe | aw
firm McLane M ddl eton, on behalf of Dartmouth
Col | ege.

And Dartmouth Col | ege takes no position

on the procedural approach this nmorning.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Would the -- woul

the College like to reserve the right to quest

d

i on

wi tnesses? Or, will you be a bystander today?

MR. GETZ: | expect to be a bystander.

But, if sonmething pops up, | may weigh in.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Very good. Very

good. Are there any other parties, outside the

Conpany, here today?

[ No indication given.]

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Seeing none.

We'll move to Liberty?

MS. RALSTON: Good norning. On behalf

of the Conmpany, Jessica Ralston, fromthe | aw
firm Keegan Werlin, and joined by M chael
Sheehan, in-house counsel for the Conpany.

The Company has no objection to the

exhibit identified by the Department of Energy.

| did want to note one issue regardi

ng

Wit nesses. Lauren Preston is on the Wtness List

for the Conmpany. Ms. Preston is experiencing
famly emergency this norning. We currently

don't know for sure if she'll be able to join

a

us.

As you noted, the Departnment will go

first. So, | expect we can provide you an update

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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bef ore we get to the Conpany's panel. But | just
wanted to mention that now.

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: And, if Ms. Preston
is not able to join, does the Conpany have a
substitute wi tness?

MS. RALSTON: We don't have a
substitute witness. Ms. Preston's area of
expertise is, you know, largely related to

custoner issues, and | don't know how central

they will be to today's discussion. So, we could
take a record request, if necessary. But our
hope is that she will be able to join us at sonme
poi nt today, it just may not be until this

af t ernoon.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Very good.
Okay. Are there any other prelimnary

matters, before we start with the DOE wi tness

panel ?
MR. DEXTER: None from the Departnment.
CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Seeing none.
We'll invite the DOE witness panel to take the

stand, and for M. Patnaude to swear in the
wi t nesses.

(Wher eupon ELI ZABETH E. NI XON,

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

JACQUELI NE M TROTTI ER, JAY E. DUDLEY,

and KAREN J. MORAN were duly sworn by

t he Court Reporter.)

CHAlI RMAN GOLDNER: And we can begin
with direct, and Attorney Dexter and the
Depart ment of Energy.

MR. DEXTER: Thank you, M. Chair man.

I have a couple of introductory
questions 1'd like to ask the panel of w tnesses.
"1l ask the questions, and I'Il ask each of you
to answer in the order that you're seated,
starting with Ms. Nixon.

ELI ZABETH E. NI XON, SWORN

JACQUELI NE M TROTTI ER, SWORN
JAY E. DUDLEY, SWORN
KAREN J. MORAN, SWORN

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q

A

Coul d you please identify yourself by stating
your name and position with the Departnent of
Ener gy pl ease?

(Ni xon) My name is Elizabeth Nixon. And |I'mthe
El ectric Director.

(Trottier) My name is Jacqueline Trottier. And

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

o r» > > P
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I'"'ma Utility Analyst in the Electric Division.
(Dudl ey) Jay Dudl ey, Utilities Analyst for the
El ectric Division, Department of Energy.

(Moran) Karen Moran, Director of the Audit

Di vi si on, Departnment of Energy.

So, the Departnment of Energy filed testinony in
this case on Decenber 13th, 2023. Did each of
you include testimony in that filing on
December 13th?

(Ni xon) | did.

(Trottier) I did.

(Dudl ey) Yes, | did.

(Moran) No, | did not.

And did that testinmny contain a description of
your educational and professional experience?
(Ni xon) Yes.

(Trottier) Yes.

(Dudl ey) Yes, it did.

And, Ms. Moran, you answered "no" to that
question. So, I'd like at this time for you to
provide a brief description of your educati onal
and wor k experience, as it's relevant to this
rate case and the Motion to Dism ss that's been

filed by the Departnment?

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

(Moran) | have a Bachelor of Arts from Stonehill
Col | ege; a Master's degree in Business
Adm ni stration from Franklin Pierce University; |
have a graduate-level Certificate in Human
Resource Managenent from Plymouth State
Uni versity.

| started my audit career in 1987. I
joined the PUC Audit Staff in 1999. | was
promoted to Chief Auditor in 2012. | am a
Certified Bank Auditor, Certified Financial
Services Auditor. And |'ve attended the NARUC
Staff Subcomm ttee on Economy and Fi nance
sem nars since | began here in 1980 -- or '90 --
sorry, 1999. And |I'm also on the Board of the
Staff Subcomm ttee.
And, if you started with the former Conm ssion,
now the DOE, in 1999, I'm cal cul ati ng about 25
years at the agency. Has your work at the agency
been virtually exclusively dedicated to
performng audits of the utilities regul ated by
t he agency?
(Moran) Yes.
Thank you. So, |I'd like to ask some nore

specific questions relevant to this case, and, in

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

particular, relevant to the Motion to Dism ss
that was filed in this case.

First of all, let me ask the panel,
have each of you reviewed the Motion to Dism ss

the rate case that we filed on Decenmber 13t h?

A (Ni xon) Yes.

A (Trottier) Yes.

A (Dudl ey) Yes, | have.

A (Moran) Yes.

Q Thank you. And turning specifically to Ms.
Moran, I'd like to draw your attention to what's
been marked in this case as "Exhibit 8". And

Exhibit 8 in this case are the fifteen
attachments that were included with the Motion to
Dism ss filed December 13th. And they have al
been bound together as "Exhibit 8". And Exhibit
8, Bates 001, is entitled "Audit Report".

Ms. Moran, was this Audit Report
prepared by you or under your supervision?
(Moran) Yes.

Q And it was issued October 25th, 2023, is that
correct?
(Moran) That's correct.

Q Is the informati on contained in the Audit Report

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

accurate to the best of your know edge and
belief?

(Moran) Yes.

And do you stand by the facts and the findings in
that report as accurate?

(Moran) Yes.

Ms. Moran, over what time was the audit
performed?

(Moran) Our audit began in May of this year --
or, 2023. Wth a draft issued to the Conpany on
Oct ober 12th -- or, sorry, on October 9th. W
met with the Conpany on October 12th. |Issued a
revised draft, to which they responded. And we
i ssued the Final Report on October 25th.

And have you, or the Audit Division that reports
to you, performed any subsequent audit work on
this Liberty rate case, in terns of updating the
Audit Report or the findings?

(Moran) No.

Ckay. I'"d like to turn specifically to the
Motion to Dismss that we filed in this case,

al so on December 13th. And |I'd like to draw your
attention in particular to Paragraphs 15 through

28, and al so Paragraph 30. So, that basically

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

starts on Page 6 of the Motion, and takes us
through till about Page 13.

Woul d you agree that those paragraphs
in the Motion to Dism ss draw heavily fromthe
findings that were laid out in the Audit Report?
(Moran) Yes.

And do you agree with the statenents that were
made in those paragraphs in the Motion to Dism ss
concerning the Audit Report?

(Moran) Yes.

Do they accurate -- does the Motion accurately
capture this basic findings of the Audit Report?
(Moran) Yes.

Woul d you agree that the Modtion contained a few
exanpl es of issues that you identified in the
Audit Report, but that the Audit Report itself
was much nore expansive, and had ot her issues

t hat were brought up that weren't specifically
mentioned in the Mtion?

(Moran) Yes. That's correct.

Okay. I'd like to talk a little bit further
about two specific paragraphs in the Motion. One
I s Paragraph 27. Paragraph 27 tal ks about the

utility's payroll, is that correct?

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

(Moran) Correct.

And it goes on to say that the -- in summari zi ng
the Audit Report, that the Audit Department was
not able to determ ne that the payroll that was
recorded by the Conmpany, you weren't able to
verify which accounts that payroll "ended up in",
if that's the right term s that a fair
assessnment of that?

(Moran) Yes. That's correct.

Coul d you explain a little bit further about what
happened with respect to your analysis of the
utility payroll, and how it was you weren't able
to trace it to the various accounts?

(Moran) One of nmy auditors was on-site with the
Payrol| Departnent, review ng the actual payroll
detail, and requested to which specific general

| edger accounts the payroll data posted, and she
was unable to |learn that.

OCkay. Could you just nmove a little bit closer to
the m crophone? |'mjust having a little hard
time hearing you.

(Moran) Sorry.

No, that's better.

(Moran) The auditor who did the work was on-site

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

Q

doi ng that work. So, she reviewed all of the
confidential payroll information, and tried to do
a follow-up to ensure that the payroll dollars
were posted to specific general |edger accounts.
And the person with whom she was working coul dn't
tell her to what accounts those were posted.

And do you know what the reason was, why the
Conpany couldn't provide that information?
(Moran) Generally, from what | understand, a
prior report that existed under Cogsdal e and
Great Plains hadn't been converted yet to some
sort of simlar report in SAP. So, the Payroll
people were unable to tell her to what accounts
they were posted.

And this report that you're tal king about, this
I's sonmet hing that had been avail able in past
audits that you've done for Liberty?

(Moran) Correct.

And it just wasn't -- wasn't able to be provided
in this case, is that right?

(Moran) Correct. But we understand that it could
be a different kind of report in SAP. And it
just wasn't available at that time.

Okay. Well, simlarly, I'd like you to turn to

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

Paragraph 30 in the Motion to Dismss. This

par agraph tal ks about Corporate allocations from
Li berty's parent conmpany or upstream Corporate
affiliates. And the conclusion in the Motion
says that "it remains unknown how much of

Li berty's Corporate allocated charges are
included in the Conpany's revenue requirenment and
whet her those charges are appropriate for
recovery in Liberty's rates.”

Could you give a little background as
to what led me, who wote the Motion, and to
bring that out in the Mdtion to Dism ss, and how
it is that the Department came to that
concl usi on?

(Moran) Well, in a simlar vein, we |ook at
background data in an attenmpt to verify the
details within that data to the respective
general |edger accounts, which may or may not be
part of the revenue requirement. And we were
unable to do that.

And, again, do you know why you were unable to do
that? Was there -- simlarly, was there a report
t hat had been provided in the past that was no

| onger available or --

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

O

o > O »

(Moran) |I'm assum ng there was a report that had
been available in the prior system and just
hadn't been made available in the SAP system
Okay.

(Moran) Although, | would have to doubl e-check
with the auditor who did the work.

Sur e. But the fact is that you stand by the
conclusion that you were unable to make that
determ nation in this case?

(Moran) Correct.

Okay. So, you were present here at the

January 4th hearing, were you not?

(Moran) Yes.

And you heard a | ot of discussion about "mapping
I ssues” in connection with the conversion of the
Conmpany's accounting system fromthe old system
to the new systent

(Moran) Yes.

And just for some background again, you referred
to the old system by what name?

(Moran) Great Pl ains.

And the new system by?

(Mor an) SAP.

SAP, okay. Could you give a genera

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

under st andi ng of the "mapping issues” that we
heard about on January 4th?
(Moran) 1'11 try to summarize it for you.
Sur e.
(Moran) From what | understand, when the Conpany
converted from Great Plains to SAP, all of the
Great Plains activity was to roll into or be
converted over to respective simlar SAP
accounts. And, within the conversion itself,
some activity was mapped to the incorrect
account .

| mean, that's the short, short version
of what we encountered.
Ckay. So, if you were here January 4th, you
heard me say a nunmber of times that, in many
I nstances, you found exanpl es where costs that
shoul d have been included on an incone statenent
ended up on a bal ance sheet, or vice versa,
accounts that should have been on a bal ance sheet
ended on the incone statenent. Did you hear nme
say that a few times?
(Moran) | did.
Do agree with what | was saying at the

January 4th hearing?

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

(Moran) | do. Those came out of our Audit

Report.

And that's detailed in the Audit Report, correct?
(Moran) Correct.

Okay. So, again, we started by asking how | ong
you' ve been doing this, and your answer was "25
years", and you' ve worked al most exclusively on
regul ated utility audits.

How woul d you characterize the degree
or the number or the significance of the mapping
errors that you came across in this audit, versus
what you found when exam ning the books of other
conpani es?

(Moran) This is very unusual. Occasionally, we
find accounts that don't fit where they were

al l egedly supposed to be, |like on the FERC Form 1
or on an annual report for a water or sewer
conpany. But, even in this instance, | ooking
back to the 13-063 audit, which we did, which was
the National Grid-Liberty rate case audit, --
You're referring to a docket number, "DE 13-063"7?
(Moran) Correct. We did an audit. In that

i nstance, there were six nonths of expenses and

bal ance sheet for National Grid, six nmonths for

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

Q

Li berty, because they changed ownership on

July 1st. And, while there were certain
conversion issues in that instance, there just
were far fewer.

Okay. How about any other conpanies that you've
audited, after they have gone through a change of
accounting system? Would you describe this as
simlar to those or was this one atypical?
(Moran) This is atypical.

Okay. In terms of number of mapping errors and
the significance?

(Moran) Correct.

Ckay. During the course of the audit, did you
receive any information from Liberty that would

i ndi cate that the mapping issues that were
identified have been corrected?

(Moran) As | noted in the Audit |ssue Number 1,
the Conmpany did say that, throughout 2023, as the
I ssues were identified, the Conpany was wor ki ng
to correct those, either through journal entries
or updating the treatment in their Wrk Breakdown
System the WBS. But | have no way of verifying
i f any of that took place.

Did you | earn of any mapping i ssues being

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000021




N

S w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

22
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

o >» O F

A

corrected in 2022, because your | ast answer said
"2023"? Did you |learn of any corrections being
made in 2022 from Li berty?
(Moran) No.
Sorry?
(Moran) No.
Have you done any independent audit work outside
of what's contained in the report, |ooking into
whet her or not the mapping issues have been
corrected?
(Moran) No, not for Granite State.
Have you done any audit work in connection with
Granite State on the books for 20237
(Moran) No. | hesitate, only because some of the
annual audits, such as the RDAF, roll into '23,
but not in this context.
Yes, I'msorry. | should have said "with respect
to the rate case that was filed", and the fact
that the test year was 2023 [20227].

Have you taken any time or effort, or
dedi cated any resources, towards | ooking at
Li berty's general |edger in 2023 concerning these
mappi ng i ssues?

(Moran) No, | haven't.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

Ckay. Do you have an opinion or any statenments
about what you think it mght take for Liberty to
identify, to be sure that they have identified
all the mapping issues, and they have, in fact,
been corrected?

(Moran) | think it would be helpful to the
Conpany to have an I T audit performed, to ensure
that the literal translation from one systemto
anot her was done correctly. W don't have the
expertise to do that.

Okay. During the course of the rate case audit
that's contained in the report, that's summari zed
in the report, you reviewed the Company's FERC
Form 1, correct?

(Moran) Correct.

Typically, does the Conmpany's FERC Form 1 -- do
t he amounts and the figures in a conpany's FERC
Form 1 match what you find on the books and
records of the conmpany?

(Moran) Yes, typically.

And, in this case, did you find that those

mat ched?

(Moran) No. Certain accounts certainly did

mat ch, but many did not.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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And was that due to the mapping issues that we've
been di scussing today, and that were discussed on
January 4th?

(Moran) Yes.

And, if | recall your Audit Report, there were
numerous entries that you had in the Audit

Report, | estimated them at around 200 entries.
And, in the Modtion, those are characterized as
"entries that would have needed to have been made
to the books for the books to match the FERC
Form 1."

(Moran) Correct.

So, I'"'mjust going to ask you, did |l -- in the
Motion, did | summarize that correctly?

(Moran) Yes.

Okay. And, so, those 200 entries are laid out in
the Audit Report, all the detail is there, is
that right?

(Moran) That's correct.

Ckay. I"m hesitating as | ask this question, but
let me ask it anyway. So, which, in your

opi ni on, would be nmore accurate, the books or the
FERC Form 17

And | ask you that, because it sounds

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Q

l'i ke, to me, that there was an attenmpt to make a
| ot of correcting entries before the FERC Form 1
was conpl et ed.

(Moran) And |I'm hesitating in response, because,
If you're trying to make the FERC Form 1 | ook as
it should, then the FERC Form 1 is probably nore
accurate than the year-end SAP accounts, which we
know were incorrect.

However, they're both supposed to be
the same. So, | don't want to say one way or the
ot her that they should have done one thing or
anot her. They should have made sure the accounts

were accurate at the end of the year.

Yes. Fair enough. But | do hear you saying that
the -- for exanple, the accounts that maybe
were -- should have been on the bal ance sheet,

but ended up on the income statement, or vice
versa, it appears to you anyway, or appears to

t he Departnment of Energy, that the Conpany
attempted to correct those when they prepared the
FERC Form 1. Wbuld you agree with that?

(Moran) They attenpted to correct the placenent
on the FERC Form 1.

Okay. And 1'll ask the Conpany's w tnesses when

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000025




N

S w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

26
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

o >» O >

they take the stand. | just wanted to bring that
up with you.

In a rate case audit, do you typically
conpare the Conpany's rate case filing to its
FERC Form 1 and its general | edger?

(Moran) Yes.

And, typically, in a rate case filing, do those
nunbers all match?

(Moran) Typically.

In this case, they did not match, is that right?
(Moran) There were many that did not match.
OCkay. And you highlighted those in your Audit
Report, is that correct?

(Moran) Yes.

Okay. And | believe | found them at Page 190 of
your Audit Report, that's Bates Page 216 of
Exhibit -- of Exhibit 8  And that information
was al so provided to the Conm ssion as

"Exhi bit 4" at the January 4th heari ng. I's that
right? Those are some of the differences --
(Moran) Correct.

-- that you found between -- well, differences
that were identified between the rate case

schedul es - -
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(Moran) Correct.
-- and the FERC Form 17?
(Moran) That's correct.

MR. DEXTER: Okay. Well, thanks, Ms.
Moran. That's the questions | had for you on
direct.

I'd like nowto turn to Ms. Ni xon and
Ms. Trottier.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Attorney Dexter,
qui ckly. There's two Bates nunmbers on Exhibit 8.
Are you referring to the one to the far right or
to the other?

MR. DEXTER: The nunber to the far
right bottom corner are the Exhibit 8 Bates
numbers.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Thank you.

MR. DEXTER: So, |I'm being told | had
t hat backwards. So, the bottomright-hand nunmber
woul d be fromthe Motion to Dismss. And the
nunber to the left of that would be the Bates
nunmber from Exhibit 8.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. So, the page
you were just referring to don't orient the

Comm ssion. | think you said "216"7?

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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MR. DEXTER: | did. | m ght have had

t hat backwar ds. Let me check

CHAlI RMAN GOL DNER: | think it was -- |
t hink you meant "190". But maybe, let's see.
Yes, | think you meant "190".

MR. DEXTER: "190" would be the Bates
Page nunmber for the Exhibit 8.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER:  Yes.

MR. DEXTER: Apol ogies for that.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. So, just to
orient us in the future, do you plan on orienting
us to the Bates page number for Exhibit 8, is
t hat --

MR. DEXTER: That will be ny intent.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Very good.

MR. DEXTER: Okay. Thank you.

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q So, Ms. Nixon and Ms. Trottier, | was going to
ask you to refer to the Motion to Dism ss that
was filed on Decenmber 13th. And I'd like you to
| ook at Paragraphs 32 through 36.

These paragraphs detail some concerns
t he Department had with recording of revenues and

billing determ nants during the test year, is
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t hat generally correct?

(Ni xon) Yes.

And, in particular, these paragraphs detail an

I nquiry that the Department made during the rate
case about potential billing delays that occurred
as the result of the inplementation of the SAP
system  Wuld you agree with that?

(Ni xon) Yes.

And have you reviewed those various motions --

t hose paragraphs, various paragraphs in the
Motion?

(Ni xon) Yes.

And do you agree with the statements that are
laid out in the Modtion, concerning the issue of
del ayed billing due to SAP and the potenti al

i mpact on test year billing determ nants and
revenues?

(Ni xon) Yes.

Ckay. Do you have any information as to whether
or not simlar billing i ssues have persisted into
2023 and 2024?

(Ni xon) Yes. There was a data response that
showed that some bills weren't actually issued

until as late as August. And those are sonme that
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t he Conpany had identifi ed. But |I'm not sure if
there's nmore than that.

That woul d be August of 2023?

(Ni xon) Correct.

Okay. And I'd like you to turn to Paragraph 38
for a mnute. This has to do with "late paynment
charges". Have you reviewed that paragraph in
the Motion?

(Ni xon) Yes.

And that paragraph essentially indicates that

| at e paynment charges were not assessed during the
mont h of October, because of the SAP

I mpl ementation. Basically, that's what that

par agraph says, is that right?

(Ni xon) Yes.

Do you agree that, based on the review, that the
Department has found that that's an accurate
assessnment ?

(Ni xon) Yes.

Ckay. Now, at the Decenber -- |I'msorry, at the
January 4th hearing, we heard fromthe Conpany
references to a filing that they made on
November 27th, we've referred to as the

“Corrections and Updates Filing", and it's
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actually marked as "Exhibit 7" [Exhibit 6?] in
this case. Have you reviewed that document?

(Ni xon) Yes, somewhat. But not in great detail
to identify if all the corrections that were
known have been made.

So, let me just unpack that a little bit. So,
the filing came in on Novenmber 27th. And you
filed testimny on Decenber 13th. And did your
testimony attenpt to reflect the Corrections and
Updates Filing, and the testinmony of other

wi t nesses as wel | ?

(Ni xon) As we noted in our testinony, that we
used that Updates, because we had to assunme that
it was better than the Initial, because the
Conmpany outlined sonme corrections they made. But
we were not able to verify that all the
corrections were made that were required.

Ckay. So, in other words, you haven't been able
to go back through all the various data requests
where the Conpany noted, for example, "this wl
be dealt with in the Corrections and Updates
Filing", you haven't taken the opportunity to
cross-reference and make sure that the

Corrections and Updates Filing captured
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everything that it was supposed to, is that what
you're saying?
(Ni xon) Correct.
Q Okay.
CMSR. CHATTOPADHYAY: Can | confirm
whet her it's "Exhibit 6" or "Exhibit 7" that
you're tal king about?

MR. DEXTER: Maybe the Conpany coul d

confirmthat. It's their exhibit, the
Corrections and Updates Filing. | thought it
was -- | thought it was "7", but --

MS. RALSTON: It is "6".

MR. DEXTER: Six. Sorry about that.
CMSR. CHATTOPADHYAY: Six?

MR. DEXTER: Yes.

BY THE W TNESS:

A (Dudl ey) M. Dexter, just to add to that, how the
updat e occurred. It was a little unusual, in
terms of our experience in other rate cases.
Typically, what happens, with an update, is that
our cost of service expert, Donna Millinax, wil
go through the cost of service and determ ne
whi ch expenses are appropriate to include in the

revenue requirement, and which expenses are not.
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Those -- that information is passed on to the
utility. The utility looks it over. And, then,
typically, the utility produces an update,
updating the revenue requirenent, |ess the
expenses that Ms. Mullinax had recomended cone
out .

Typically, that update is acconpani ed
not only by the spreadsheet, which provides the
adj ustnments that were made, but it also cones
with a technical statement explaining those
adj ust ment s.

In this particular case, with Liberty,
on Novenber 27th, we were provided with just the
Excel spreadsheets. We were not provided with a
techni cal statement that actually described and
detail ed the accounting adjustnments that were
made.

The other distinction is that these
wer e accounting adjustments, not adjustments to
expenses and to adjust the revenue requirement.
These were corrections to accounting entries that
had been made incorrectly. And, because of that,
they require verification, they require

confirmati on, as to whether or not they are
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accur at e.

And, between the time of the filing,
November 27th, and the filing of our testinony,
on Decenmber 13th, there wasn't enough time to
actually do that in-depth verification.

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q And | think you're trying to draw a distinction,
if I understand, M. Dudl ey, between past cases
where, you know, during the course of the
exam nation, you've nmentioned "expenses", and |
assume it could be a rate base item too, you
m ght find something that was non-utility rel ated
that m ght get adjusted out of the cost of
service, |ike maybe a charitable contribution or
something |like that that's not recoverable
t hrough rates, and that would be taken care of in
the Corrections and Update filing, is that what

you're saying?

A (Dudl ey) That is correct. Yes.

Q And here, what you're saying is, nmost of what was
i ncluded in that spreadsheet that was provided
were actually trying to bring the rate case up
to -- I'"'msorry, trying to correct the rate case

for errors that were i nherent in the books as
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they were filed?

(Dudl ey) Correct.

As they were closed at the end of 20227

(Dudl ey) Yes. That's correct.

Okay. Have you, at the Departnment, the four of
you, been working on the rate case since the stay
was i ssued by the Department [sic] on Decenber

29t h, 2023, other than preparing for this

heari ng?
(Ni xon) | was going say "preparing for this
hearing”". But that's it.

(Trottier) No.

(Dudl ey) Preparing for the hearing, yes.

And, in terms of the outside wi tnesses that the
Department retained, did you instruct themto
stop working on this case as of Decenber 29th
until further notice?

(Ni xon) Yes.

(Dudl ey) Yes, we did.

Ckay.

(Ni xon) 1 have one thing to add to the
Corrections and Updates that you were saying, is
the other thing is, as we heard |ast hearing in

this case, there were additional corrections.
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A (Ni xon) No. |

Q Ckay.

Suppl enment al Dat

2023, and that t
we included that
of Exhibit 8. |
about ?

t hat issue. But
the errors that
hearing, that
heari ng.
So,

And | think

Bat es nunbers in nmy outline.

hesitating a lit

CHAlI RMAN GOL DNER:

while we're sort

make sure we've

At the | ast

handout .
"Exhibit 4". I

| east nmost of it

was referring to --

we | ust

let's take them one at

have -- |

We had asked for

And t hose, obviously, were not included in that
Novenmber 27th filing.
Q So, as | recall, the Departnent received a

a Response 2-5 on Decenber 6th,

al ked about a mapping issue. And

in the Motion to Dism ss as part
what

s that you were talking

well, there's
| was referring specifically to
were mentioned at the | ast
had heard about at the | ast
a time then.
think I have the wrong
So, that's why |I'm
tle bit.
Att orney Dexter,
want to

ing through that one, |

got the whole thing together.
heari ng, you presented a
that to be filed as
think that you actually filed at

in Exhibit 8. That' s t hat
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Page 190 we were tal king about. But | don't see
an Exhibit 4 that was filed fromthe Departnent.
So, | was hoping you could help me?

MR. DEXTER: Sure. Sure. So, | guess
' mgoing to be a victim of the ol d-fashioned
way. Because, in the old days, when you handed
out the paper exhibit, and it went to the Clerk,
who sat where M. Speidel is sitting now, that
woul d take care of it. And that's, obviously,
not the way it works in the electronic era.

So, | guess | did not file that
Exhibit 4 electronically. But I will do that.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER:  Okay.

MR. DEXTER: And that was one of the
data requests that we've been tal king about.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Correct. Correct.
| just want to check in with the other parties to
make sure there's no concerns. The handout, from
the | ast hearing, filed as "Exhibit 4", Attorney
Dexter will file that electronically, everybody
I's okay with that for this hearing?

[Multiple parties indicating in the

affirmative. ]

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Thank you.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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MR. DEXTER: Yes. Sorry about that.

Thanks for pointing that out.

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q

So, Ms. Nixon, let's talk about the errors that
were identified by the Conpany at the January 4th
hearing. Those have been detailed in Record
Response Nunber 1, is that correct?

(Ni xon) I amnot sure if it's all of them It
identifies -- says that it's "some of theni'. But
| don't know if it was all that they were
referring to.

Ckay. If we were to go to -- | don't know if

you' ve got Record Response Number 1 in front of
you, but there's a chart that details -- they
were -- the Conpany was asked to |list the various
mappi ng i ssues in order of magnitude, starting
with the |largest, and ending with Number 10. Do
you have that sheet in front of you?

(Ni xon) | pulled up the record request. | don't
have the exhibit, but | do have the record
request.

Okay. And you'll see that Item Nunber 5 --
sorry, ltem Number 1 -- |let me rephrase that.

You'll see that Item Number 5 is dated

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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"Decenmber 2023". And there's a footnote that
pertains to items number "5, 8, 9 and 10". It's
your understanding that those were the errors
that were identified by the Conpany at the
January 4th hearing, correct?

(Ni xon) That's ny understanding. But, as |
noted, I know that -- | mean, this list, it's ny
understanding it's the top ten in dollar

magni tude. So, | don't know if that enconpasses
all that they were referring to.

Sure. Yes. There could have been number -- 11
t hrough 20 could have --

(Ni xon) Exactly.

Yes. Okay. | understand. All right. M.
Dudley, I'd like you to go to the Motion to
Dism ss that was filed, to Paragraph 40, appears
on Page 16 of the Motion.

(Dudl ey) Okay. Let me just get there, M.
Dexter.

Sur e.

(Dudl ey) And, okay. Yes, |I'mthere.

So, that paragraph has to do with Vegetation
Management expenses that are included in the rate

case for recovery, is that right?

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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(Dudl ey) That is correct. Yes.
Have you revi ewed Paragraph 407
(Dudl ey) 1 have, yes.
And are you in agreement with the concl usions
that are stated in Paragraph 40, that the amount
for Vegetation Managenment included in the rate
case has been updated at |east twice by the
Conpany in this case?
(Dudl ey) Yes. | agree.
And is it your understanding that in this --
well, I"mgoing to strike that question.

| guess | have a question for the
panel, and anyone can answer that thinks that
t hey have the answer, or feel free to suppl ement
each other's answers. But, at the January 4th
heari ng, we heard a proposal by the Conpany that,
rat her than dism ss the case, as the Department
of Energy requested in the Motion, that the case
be put on hold while a third party auditor be
hired to review the underlying books in the rate
case, and to make sure that they're al
corrected, and then the case go forward.

At the January 4th hearing, | stated,

on behalf of the Department, that we didn't think

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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that was the appropriate remedy in this case. Do
you have any additional thoughts on the
suggestion that this case be paused, and that it
be turned over to a third party auditor?

(Dudl ey) Well, M. Dexter, it's based on what we
know and what we don't know. What we don't know
are the specific details of Liberty's proposal.
We know that they recomend extending the stay
for an additional 90 days, so that the audit can
be conpleted. We know that Liberty would Iike to
be the ones to choose the auditor. And that,
preferably, that auditor has an existing business
relationship with Liberty.

We al so know that they prefer that the
audit -- that the audit just be targeted to the
correction issues associated with the 2022 test
year and the mapping issues. That's as nmuch as
we Kknow.

We were informed by counsel for
Li berty, at the January 4th hearing, that errors
continue to be found in the mapping. And, as a
matter of fact, counsel represented to the
Comm ssion that the Conmpany had recently

identified some additional adjustments related to

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000041




N

S w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

42
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

the 2022 FERC account mapping issues, and that
that would lead to a flow-through of an
addi ti onal update to the revenue requirenment.
So, apparently, an additional update is
forthcomng to the update that was issued on
November 27th.

And, so, the question we have is that,

i f an additional update is forthcom ng, because
Li berty continues to discover errors inits

mappi ng, is there going to be a third update? |Is
there going to be a fourth update? 1Is there
going to be a fifth update? W don't know.

What we don't know is, and, as Ms.

Ni xon al luded to earlier, we don't know the
extent of the errors. W don't know the full
extent of the errors.

Okay.

(Dudl ey) We only know about those errors that
have been discovered.

We think that the test year has been
sufficiently tainted beyond repair. W don't
think that -- we believe that an audit, which, by
the way, should have been done by Liberty, should

have been performed by Liberty, before they filed
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their rate case, we think it would be a waste of
time and resources.
So, let me just follow up on that. | know Ms.
Ni xon wants to chime in. But, along what we do
know, we do know that the conversion took place
in 2022, is that right?
(Dudl ey) Yes. That's correct.
And we do know that the books in 2022 were not
corrected in 2022, but all the various mappi ng
corrections were done starting in 2023, is that
ri ght?
(Dudl ey) That's correct. And our understandi ng,
again, fromcounsel's representation, is that, as
errors continue to be discovered, that those
corrections will carry over into 2024.
Okay. | just wanted to clear that up. Yes, Ms.
Ni xon, did you want to add sonet hing?
(Ni xon) That was one of them that there's still
errors. And the books won't match.

But | also wanted to note that the
Conmpany did state that the external auditors had
revi ewed the books and were okay with it,
according to what indication we got fromthe

Conmpany. So, they have already had auditors that
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revi ewed, but did not find these errors, and
especially the mapping errors. And |I don't
believe that a typical auditor would be | ooking
at I T issues, is my understanding.
And, so, then, as a panel, your recomendati on
woul d be that the Comm ssion grant the Motion to
Dism ss, rather than go down the third party
auditor route, is that a fair assessnment?
(Ni xon) Yes.
(Dudl ey) Yes.
(Trottier) Yes.
(Moran) Yes.

MR. DEXTER: Okay. Thank you. That's
all the questions | have.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Thank you.
We'll nmove to cross, beginning with the Office of
t he Consumer Advocate.

MR. KREI'S: Thank you, M. Chairman.

l"mjust going to ask a few questions.
And | apol ogize in advance if any of them sound
li ke they're intended as trick questions or
hostil e questions, because they're really not.
l"mreally just trying to figure out how we, at

the Office of the Consumer Advocate, got here,
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whi ch is an unusual pl ace.
And | think I"m going to start with
Ms. Mor an.
CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. KREI S:
Q Ms. Moran, | have to say that, even though you
and | arrived on the scene here |I think right
about at the same time, in 1999, --

(Moran) That's correct.

Q -- and, so, therefore, | have been acquainted
with you since then, | know relatively little
about what you actually do. And, so, |'mjust

going to ask you a few questions, just to make
sure |'m understanding the significance of your
audit correctly.

First of all, could you conpare the
actual process that you undertake when you do an
audit |like this, you and your team obviously, to
the sort of financial audit that a CPA firm would
do of a non-regul ated business, in order to make
sure that their annual books accurately reflected
the state of the conpany's finances at the end of
whatever its tax year is? |Is it basically the

same process that you do?
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(Moran) Don, | can't actually say for certain,
because |1've never worked for a CPA firm

However, the focus of a regulator audit is, first
and foremost, conpliance with the Chart of
Accounts make sure your general | edger agrees
with your annual report, in this case, the FERC
Form 1. And, then, we verify those to the Rate
Filing.

That's the very first step in any audit
t hat we do. Doesn't matter if it's a |large
utility or a small sewer conmpany.

After that first step, we |ook into the
activity within each account, to ensure that the
entries in those accounts should be where they
ar e. That's, in the world' s small est nutshell,
that's what we do. But we verify things to
source docunentation, revenue, we tie to
I ndi vi dual customer accounts, just to do what we
call a "tariff test", to make sure that what
they're authorized to charge they're literally
charging to individual custoners.

And we also | ook at, you know, payroll
in general, revenues in general, expenses in

general, do a conparison of year-over-year for
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income statement related items, make sure things
that should be below the Iine are booked there.

Does that help at all?

Yes, it does?

(Moran) Okay.

Is there any place in the audit that you
conpleted in October that states what your -- the
audit team s ultimte conclusion is, as to the
accuracy of their representations you | ooked at

I n the Conpany's books and records?

(Moran) You don't typically do that sort of
conclusion that you would see in a regul ar CPA
audit of financial statements or sharehol der
representation. The fact that there are so many
i ssues at the end is kind of a concl usion.

We did say, at the outset of the audit,
that we weren't able to get into as many details
as we typically would, because we had trouble
getting answers in a timely manner. That
hi ndered us a little bit.

But, no, we don't typically do that.

So, in other words, if | understand your answer
correctly, if I wanted to really kind of | ook at
your audit and interpret it, | guess, the place

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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A

that | would | ook would be the 28 audit findings
that come at the end of the audit, true?
(Moran) That's true.
What is an "audit finding" exactly, as that term
I's used in the audit?
(Moran) Well, an "audit issue", it's not an
“audit finding".
Oh, excuse nme. "Audit issue".
(Moran) An "audit issue" is some instance where
we found some kind of error, or m sapplication of
FERC rul es, or m splacenent of accounts or
m smappi ng of accounts, that kind of thing. It's
really just sonme error that junped out at us as
we progressed through our audit.
And | want to make sure | understood your earlier
testimony. You nentioned that you provided the
Conmpany "a draft of the audit on October 9th",
and then you said you "met with the Conpany on
Oct ober 12th." And | just want to make sure |I'm
| eaping to the right concl usion.

At that October 12th meeting, you
di scussed with the Conmpany those 28 audit
findings, correct?

(Moran) We di scussed whatever they wanted to
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A

di scuss. It's a very open process. Until the
audit is finalized, the Draft Audit is only

bet ween the Audit Division and the Conmpany. So,
we can go back and forth a few different times to
go over certain things, if we've msinterpreted
somet hing, or if they provided docunentation that
they hadn't when the Draft was originally issued.
We can change the report, so the final document
I's cleaner and cl earer.

Woul d that potentially result in you wi ping out
an audit issue altogether, because you were

convi nced by the Conpany that that issue had been
resolved to your satisfaction?

(Moran) It could.

Did that happen at all in this case?

(Moran) | frankly don't recall.

In the audit issues that you identify, there are
di fferent places where the Conpany indicates that
it basically agrees with the concern that you
expressed, and it made certain commtments around
how it would deal with correcting those issues
that you identified. That's pretty typical,

isn't it?

(Moran) That is typical, yes.
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000049




N

S w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

50
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

Did the Company, in fact, follow through and do
the things that it said it was going to do in its
response to your audit issues?

(Moran) | think there were only two issues that
we asked for copies of updated journal entries.
But the other issues, we wouldn't do any Kkind of
follow-up audit work until the next rate case
audi t .

And, with regard to the sheer nunber of audit

I ssues that you identified, 28, can you put that

I n perspective? |Is that a |lot of issues? |Is
that not a |l ot of issues?

(Moran) For a rate case, that's fairly typical.
But the detail of each issue is really what's the
reason we're here.

Thank you. So, that's very helpful. So, what
you're suggesting that | do, and, ultimtely,

what the Comm ssioners do, is not make a decision
based on the nunber of audit issues, which I
think you just said is not that unusual, but,
really, your concern as an auditor has to do with
t he magni tude of and the significance of sone,
maybe all, of those individual audit issues that

your team identified?
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(Moran) That's correct.
Thank you. That's so hel pful. | really thank
you for -- I'"msorry for asking you questions
about things |I should probably have | ong ago
| earned the answers to, but | didn't.

Okay. | think, now | have a coupl e of
gquestions that m ght be for Ms. Nixon, or M.
Dudl ey, or Ms. Trottier. | guess | don't --
whi chever one of them or ones of them want to
answer will be hel pful.

Let me start with Ms. Nixon.
Ms. Ni xon, you're aware that our Office filed
testinmony in this rate case on the same day that
you and your team filed your testinony, yes?
(Ni xon) Yes.
Have you had a chance to review the testinmny
that we filed at the OCA?
(Ni xon) No.
So, you haven't read it?
(Ni xon) No.
If I told you that none of the testinmny we
filed, and, in particular, the testinony that
M. Defever filed, who is, | think, the

counterpart to your Wtness Mullinax, if | told
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you that his testinmny doesn't raise any of the
I ssues that you're here raising today, would
that -- |ike, what do you make of that?

(Ni xon) Well, | guess | would -- | mean, |I'm
jumping to conclusions, but you asked me to
hypot hesi ze.

Yes.

(Ni xon) So, | would say that, based on that
person's experience, that you don't have to deal
with the issues we're dealing with here. So, you
have to assunme everything is accurate to the best
of your know edge, and proceed forward |i ke you
normal ly would in a rate case.

Right. That's really hel pful, because that's
exactly what | didn't intend to be a trick
questi on. | just want to make sure that the
Comm ssi on understands that the fact that our
testi nmony doesn't raise any of the same issues
that you all are raising isn't -- doesn't nmean
that, in the judgnment of the OCA or its

wi t nesses, the Motion to Dism ss is wthout
merit. Is that a fair statement, from your
perspective?

(Ni xon) Yes. | mean, we had to make sim|l ar
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assunptions. | mean, we proposed the dism ssal.
But, if the decision is to not dism ss this case,
we had to move forward and use nunbers that we
had.

MR. KREIS: And I think those are al
of my questions. Thank you.

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: Thank you.

We can now nove to Dartnmouth Coll ege,
and Attorney Getz?

MR. GETZ: No questions, M. Chairman.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Thank you.

We can now turn to the Company, and
Attorney Ral ston?

MS. RALSTON: Thank you. Good norning
to the panel.

| have a series of questions that |
have tried to break up by topic. So, I'll pose
themto the panel kind of generally. A few of
them may be nore pertinent to one witness or the
other, and I'll try to indicate who I think is
the right person. But please correct me, or, you

know, junp in.

BY MS. RALSTON:

Q So, first, I"'mjust going to direct the entire
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panel to the Motion to Dism ss, at Paragraph 6.
So, in Paragraph 6, it states that "even if all
factual assertions in the Conpany's Rate Filing
are taken as true, the unreliability and

I nconsi stency presented throughout Liberty's
filings and the inferences to be drawn fromthis
unreliability do not support Liberty's requested
rate relief.” Do you all see that?

[Multiple witnesses indicating in the
affirmative].

Okay. And does the panel agree that, prior to
the filing of this Mdtion to Dism ss, that the
Conpany had submtted its Initial Filing, which

i ncluded testinony, supporting exhibits, and that
t he Conpany has al so provided an updated revenue
requirement, we've been discussing that this
nmorning, it's marked as "Exhibit 6"?

(Ni xon) Yes.

Ckay. And does the panel also agree that the
Conpany has responded to a nunber of data
requests as part of the proceedi ng, and then also
to data requests issued by the Department’'s Audit
Di vi si on?

(Nixon) 1'Il speak to the ones from Regul atory,

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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yes. | don't know about Audit.

Q And do you agree, Ms. Moran, that the Conmpany
responded to specific data requests fromthe
Audit Division that were used to devel op the
Audit Report?

A (Moran) The Audit Division doesn't issue data
requests. But they did respond to our audit
gquesti ons.

Q "Audit questions”, maybe that's the right term
Apol ogi es.

And, then, could each nmenber of the
panel 1ndicate what you reviewed prior to
preparation for today?

A (Ni xon) Basically, the issues at hand. The
Moti on, the Motion was the main thing. But
there's various other docunments, rules,
testi noni es. And | can't list themall. But ,
yes. Just general hearing prep.

Ckay.

A (Trottier) I mainly just reviewed the Modtion, and
the --

[ Court reporter interruption.]

BY THE W TNESS:

A (Trottier) I mainly just reviewed the Mtion, and
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000055




N

S w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

56
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon|  Trotti er| Dudl ey| Mor an]

A

the references within it.

(Dudl ey) For me, it would be all of the exhibits,
some of the testinmony, in particular, the Audit
Report and the Moti on.

(Moran) The sane.

BY MS. RALSTON:

Q

And | think that, Ms. Moran, | think you
confirmed this just a few m nutes ago, actually,
but am | correct that you are the only witness
that participated in the audit investigation and
preparation of that report?

(Moran) That's not correct.

That's not correct. Okay.

(Moran) No. The entire Audit Staff participated

in witing the report, including me. But, as the
Director, | oversaw the conpletion of it.
Apol ogi es, maybe | wasn't clear. Are you the

only witness on the stand this nmorning, though,

t hat --
(Moran) Yes.
Okay. That's all | just wanted to confirm

Okay. So, I'mgoing to direct you, Ms. Moran,
t hrough a series of questions as you're -- due to

your involvement with the audit investigation.
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So, going back to the Motion to
Dism ss, at Paragraph 17, it states that the
Audit Division was unable to performits work
efficiently "due to the significant tim ng del ays
bet ween asking questions of Liberty and receiving
responses.” Do you see that?
(Moran) | do.
Ckay. And what is the typical turnaround time
for a utility to respond to a question fromthe
Audit Division?
(Moran) It can be anywhere from hours, to a few
days.
OCkay. And is that turnaround tinme set in a
regul ation or is it --
(Moran) No.
-- established by a procedural schedul e?
(Moran) No. We're not usually part of a
procedural schedul e. It's simply the way the
audit functions.
And, if we can turn to Exhibit 8, which is the
Audit Report, at Page 149, which | think
correlates to 175 in the Modtion, if you're
getting confused with the Bates nunbers, | know

there's been a little confusion.
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Q

It states that "Because of the quantity
of noted adjustments, and the time required to
identify variances among the FERC Form 1
accounts, Audit is unable to determne if the
reported adjustments are accurate nor if they

represent all of the adjustments that should have

been done." Do you see that, Ms. Moran?
(Moran) I'm not there yet, but | recall the
statement.

| can let you get there, if you would Iike.
(Dudley) I"msorry, Ms. Ralston. You said that's
"Bates Page 175"7?

It's Bates 149, but | think, in the Motion
attachnment, it was "175". | was just trying to
give the two numbers to help with --

(Moran) | think that's opposite.

And, so, Ms. Moran, is the Audit Division's
investigation timeline governed by a Conmm ssion
rul e?

(Moran) No.

And is the Audit's investigation tinmeline
governed by the procedural schedul e?

(Moran) No.

And did the Audit Division request any additional
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time, in light of the challenges it faced?
(Moran) | don't understand the question.

Did the Audit Division request any additional
time to performits investigation?

(Moran) No, | heard the question. | just don't
under stand the question. Sorry.

So, the statement fromthe Audit Report says that
"due to time constraints" you were unable to
verify the accuracy of the information. And, so,

I'"mjust asking if you asked for nmore time?

(Moran) Okay. The answer is "no.
Ckay. The Conpany converted to the SAP system
during the 2022 test year. I's that your
under st andi ng?

(Moran) Yes.

Okay. Do any other New Hampshire utilities use
an SAP accounting systenf

(Moran) |'m unsure.

OCkay. Wuld you agree that an SAP accounti ng
system woul d require different audit processes
t han other types of accounting systens?

(Moran) | disagree.

You di sagree. Okay.

(Moran) The Audit Staff works with many different
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Q

ki nds of accounting systens across the various
utilities.

If I refer you back to the Audit Report, at Bates
Page 171, this is where the Audit Report
addresses Audit Issue 13. And the audit issue
states that "Prior to the switch from Great

Pl ains to SAP, the Conmpany used an Opex Capex
report to reconcile the payroll to the general

| edger." And that report is no |onger avail able

with the change to SAP, and | think you talked

about that with Attorney Dexter. Do you see
that ?
(Moran) That's correct. I''m there.

Ckay. And, then, the related audit
recommendation states that "reconciling the
general |edger is an inmportant step in providing
accurate account details, and Audit recommended

that the Conpany prioritize a replacement

report."

In response, the Conpany confirmed that
"Payroll is reconciled to the general |edger on
each pay date."”™ Do you see that?

(Moran) | see that.

Okay. Is it your opinion that the Conpany nust
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continue to produce information in that same
format, even when the format is no | onger
avai |l abl e because of the system conversion?
(Moran) Of course not. We just need to be able
to verify, as | said earlier, in this instance,
the payroll dollars to the general |edger system
regardl ess of what the systemis. And we want to
use the reports that the Conpany uses. We never
want a report to be created just for us.
And just to clarify, Audit Issue 13 didn't result
I n any recommendati ons of a disallowance, is that
correct?
(Moran) Correct.
Ckay. So, is it your opinion that the Conmpany's
payroll costs should be included in the revenue
requi rement that's used to set rates?
(Moran) | can't say, because | don't know in what
accounts they're posted.
I would like to continue referring to the Audit
Report, but direct your attention to Audit |ssue
Number 1, which begins on Bates Page 139.

And Audit Issue 1 spans several pages.
| think it goes between Bates 139 and 148, and

lists a number of adjustments that were made by
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the Conmpany. Do you see those?

Yes. It's on Bates 165, if you're
usi ng the Motion version.
(Moran) 1'mthere.
Okay. And is it your understanding that those
adj ustments were made by the Conmpany during its
preparation of the FERC Form 1 and the revenue
requi rement schedul es that were included in the
Initial Filing?
(Moran) |I'"munsure if the adjustments were done.
Those were the adjustments that were identified
by the Conpany.
So, to rephrase, is it your understandi ng that
those adjustnents were identified during
preparation of the FERC Form 1 and the revenue
requirement for this filing?
(Moran) My understandi ng was they were
identified -- some were identified during the
preparation of the FERC Form 1. Some were
probably, and |I don't know for sure, identified
after, as the revenue requirement schedul es were
prepar ed.
But, to clarify, they were identified prior to

filing this case? | think that's what you just
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said, is that correct?

(Moran) Parts of them were. As we know, there
have been others identified recently.

Ri ght. But |I'm speaking specifically about Audit
|ssue 1. These were identified by the Conpany
prior to filing this case?

(Moran) Correct.

Ckay.

(Moran) Not all, though, just to be clear.
I['msorry. Can you repeat that?

(Moran) Not all, just to be clear.

Your statement is that not all of the adjustnents
in Audit |ssue Number 1 were not, were identified
before the filing?

(Moran) 1'm saying some of them were identified
by Audit. Most were identified by the Conpany.
But there were others that we asked about, and
the Conmpany agreed that they were m smapped.

OCkay. And we're, just to be absolutely clear,
we're both tal king about Audit |ssue Nunber 17
(Moran) Correct.

Okay. Thank you. All right. And, now, if | can
turn you to the Conpany's Objection to the Motion

to Dism ss, on Page 10. Do you have t hat
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document in front of you?

(Moran) | do not.

Okay. Il will summarize. And, so, in that, in
its Objection, the Conmpany explained that it is
not unusual to identify and make adj ustnments
after the fiscal year accounting closing for the
subsequent year. Do you recall the Conpany
saying that or have you heard the Conpany
represent that?

(Moran) 1've heard that represented.

Okay. Is it your position that the Conpany
shoul d have reopened the 2022 books?

(Moran) No.

Ckay. So, turning back to the Audit Report, in
addition to Audit |Issue Number 1 that we just

di scussed, there are 27 other audit issues,
correct?

(Moran) Correct.

Ckay. And woul d you agree that some of those
audit issues have resulted in recommendati ons for
m nor adjustnments? So, for example, | could turn
you to Audit Issue Number 2, which is on Bates
Page 151, which recommends the renoval of

"$1,413"7?
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(Moran) That's correct.

OCkay. And would you also agree that certain
audit issues represent a reasonabl e di sagreenent
bet ween the Audit Division and the Conpany that
could be resolved during the proceeding? So, for
exanple, Audit |Issue Number 3, which is on Bates
Page 153, relates to capitalizing fleet and

equi pment depreciation, and the amunt at issue
was $26, 000, and the Conpany cited to a GAAP
standard in support of its position. Do you
agree that there could be a reasonable

di sagreenment between --

(Moran) | understand that we disagree. | don't
think it's reasonable. FERC says you can't do
that. So, we're on -- we're just on opposite
sides of this one. You can --

Fair. And do you agree that the Comm ssion could
review Audit's position and the Company's
position, if we nmove forward with the proceeding,
and they could make a determ nation?

(Moran) Sure. The Conmm ssion can | ook at

what ever they choose to review.

And woul d you al so agree that certain audit

I ssues could be resolved through the exchange of
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additional information? So, for exanple, Audit
| ssue Nunber 4, which appears on Bates Page 155,
states that, while Audit concurred with the
Conmpany's proposal, it did request the adjusting
journal entries, which I think you referenced a
few m nutes ago as well. So, would you agree
there are instances where additional information
could resol ve an issue?
(Moran) There will always be instances where
additional information could be provided. But
this is now in October of 2023, that's not going
to change the result of the 2022 test year
review.

Hopefully, if we come back and do an
audit in your next rate case, this issue won't
exi st .
And woul d you agree that certain audit issues did
not result in any adjustments to the Conpany's
revenue requirement, but were recommendations for
I mproved processes going forward?
(Moran) Yes.
Okay. Thank you. And, then, turning back to the
Motion to Dism ss, and | apol ogize for making you

flip between docunents, at Paragraph 15, it
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A

states that "Since the source of the information
contained in the Rate Filing and the FERC Form 1
and" -- hold on, | mstyped this. So, give me a
second just to get there.

So, it states "Since the source of the
information contained in the Rate Filing and FERC
Form 1l is the Conpany's general |edger, all three
pi eces of information should match."” Do you see
t hat ?

(Moran) | see that.

Okay. And the Department of Energy's position is
that the general |edger should always match the
FERC Form 1, is that correct?

(Moran) We understand there will be adjustments.
In this instance, there were so many errors. I,
as you now know, |'ve been doing this kind of
audit work for a long tine. | have never seen so
many errors in the general |edger, versus the
FERC Form 1, versus the Rate Filing.

And the Conmpany has acknow edged, right, that
there is a variance between the three sets of
data. Do you agree that the Conpany has provided
expl anations for this variance?

(Moran) | can't be certain.
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Q

If you turn to the Audit, back to the Audit
Report, at Page 149, it states that "subsequent
to the parent conpany closing of the books for
the 2022 year-end, Liberty identified "Unadjusted
Di f ferences"” of approximtely 848,000." And,
then, also on the sanme page, it says that "Wth
the Unadjusted Differences reflected in the
revenue requirement, the FERC Form 1 maps
directly to the data recorded in Liberty's
financial system The Conpany has provided a
trial balance to Staff that provides the direct
mapping to the FERC Form 1." Do you see that?
(Moran) 1'mthere.

Ckay. And, so, is it your position that, even if
the data can be traced to the financial records,
It cannot be relied on?

(Moran) The data can't be traced to the accurate
financial records. A mapping of the m smapped

I ssues is alnmost circular. | understand the
Conpany acknow edges that there were mapping

I ssues. But to say "we provided a listing to
show what those m smapped things were" does not
correct those issues.

Okay. So, going to Page 139 of the Audit
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Report -- actually, I'"mgoing to skip that one.
So, just one foll ow-up. | think a few
m nutes ago we di scussed whether or not the
Company shoul d have reopened the 2022 books. And
I think you said it was not your position that
the 2022 books shoul d have been reopened. l's
that -- is my menory correct?
(Moran) That's correct.
Okay. So, if the Company was not going to reopen
the 2022 books, and the Company has provided an
expl anation for why the FERC Form 1 and the
revenue requirenment schedul es do not match the
2022 books, wouldn't you agree the Conmpany has
provi ded an explanation for how it got fromthe
2022 books to what has been filed in this case?
(Moran) Sure. It, again, doesn't clear the fact
that the books are incorrect. They should have
been cl eared and adjusted during the close of
year-end 2022. But |'m guessing, and probably
incorrect to do on the stand, but |I'm guessing
that, sinmply due to the massive anount of
m smapped accounts and entries, it couldn't be
done. The books still have to be closed somehow.

And your externals didn't want to reopen the
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A

books either, because, from the Corporate
perspective, New Hanpshire's Granite State

El ectric sinmply isn't big enough to reopen the
SEC filings and federal filings. That's ny
under st andi ng.

So, is it your position that the difference that
exi sts between the rate case filing and the
Conpany's books and other forms require the

Comm ssion to deny a request for a change in

di stribution rates?

(Moran) Based on the audit work, yes, | agree
with that statenment.

In your opinion, should a utility make necessary
adjustnments prior to filing a rate change request
to ensure the accuracy of the data?

(Moran) The data should be verified for accuracy
with each close, with each nmonthly close, with
each annual close, with each quarterly close.
Yes, | agree with that.

Right. But, if the Conpany does a review prior
to a filing, and discovers additional adjustnments
are necessary, should it make those adjustnments
before it files?

(Moran) If the books are already cl osed, no. But
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they should disclose all of those adjustnments, as
M. Dudley said earlier, disclosed in a technical
statement of "These are the books, these are the
revenue adjustments.”™ And |I'm not sure that's
taken pl ace here.

I n your opinion, how much can a utility's rate
case filing differ fromits books and records

wi t hout requiring a denial of the request for a
change in rates?

(Moran) | have no opinion on that. This is the
first time we've ever seen books this far off.
So, | can't quantify a dollar amount.

And, simlarly, you couldn't quantify the number
of adjustments?

(Moran) Of course not.

And are you aware of the statutory |anguage t hat

descri bes what a rate case filing nust be based
on?

And | -- the entire panel is welcone to
wei gh in. | don't know if this is really Ms.

Moran's area of expertise. So, acknow edgi ng
that. And | amreferring specifically to RSA
378:27 and 378:28, where there's reference to

setting rates based on reports that the utility
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has filed with the Comm ssion and the Depart nent
of Energy.

Are members of the panel generally
famliar with that statutory | anguage?

(Dudley) I amfamliar with that, yes.

Ckay. And would you agree, and I'll point to
you, M. Dudley, that a FERC Form 1l is a report
filed with the Conm ssion?

(Dudley) It is. Although, the Initial Filing
fromLiberty did not contain the FERC Form 1.

Ri ght. But the Conpany filed an updated Initial
Filing that did reference the FERC Form 1,
correct?

(Dudl ey) Correct.

Okay. And | think that's why we're using it as
the basis for this case at this point.

And the Conpany's revenue requirement
can be tied to the FERC Form 1, do you agree?
(Dudl ey) That's typically how it's done, yes.
And, in this case, would you agree that the two
docunments can be tied?

(Dudl ey) They can be tied. But, as we have
di scussed and have found out that the two don't

mat ch.
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Q

Right. That's why |I said "tied", | didn't say
“mat ched". | think we provided expl anations for
why there are differences. But I'm just asking

I f they could be tied, if you can trace the
di fferences?
(Dudl ey) | would say, ordinarily, you can. But |
woul d defer to Ms. Moran.
Ms. Moran, do you want to add anything?
(Moran) Well, | was concerned about one entry
that was a revenue amount that was reflected in
want to say the "accunul ated depreciation
schedule", that's -- | could be wrong, but it
wasn't in the revenue section. Actually, it was
in the depreciati on expense revenue requirement
filing. And it was correctly proformed out of
that, but it was not proformed back into the
revenue schedule. And that's just one instance |
remenber off the top of ny head.

As we said, because of the billing
I ssues, and the different problems that existed
with the customer service side of the business,
I['"m not sure -- | understand that the revenue
requi rement schedul e does have certain revenue

accounts that could be verified.
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> O >» O

Ckay.
(Ni xon) May | add to that?
Sur e.
(Ni xon) So, the filing requirenments and the FERC
Form 1 do not match. And the Conpany did not
hi ghli ght and identify those in their filing how
they do not match.
But has the Conpany been able to provide
expl anations for that during the course of the
proceedi ng?
(Ni xon) Through us identifying the differences,
several of them the Company did respond to a
data request. But those were not -- an updated
filing was not provided to indicate what those
differences are, as required by those statutes
and rules that are out there.
| am going to turn the panel to Exhibit 6, which
iIs the Conmpany's updated revenue requirenment
filed on November -- or, submtted on Novenber
27th.  And | think the panel, or at |east sone
menmbers of the panel, have reviewed it, if not in
great detail.

But, if I could just refer you, there's

a tab, | believe it's the very first tab of the
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Excel version, and the title of that tab is
"TrackRRUpdat es" ?

(Dudl ey) Ms. Ral ston, are you referring to Tab
"RR-1"7?

No.

(Dudl ey) Because there are two Excel spreadsheets
that were fil ed.

Yes. And I'mreferring to Part - Exhibit --
"Part 2 of 3" of Exhibit 6. And, if you're in

t hat Excel -- are you in that Excel filing, M.
Dudl ey?

(Dudl ey) I am yes.

Ckay.

(Dudl ey) But | see the tabs are identified by
"RR".

If you go all the way down to the bottom the
little arrows in the |ower |eft-hand corner, and
you go all the way over to the very first tab,
there should be a tab that's called

"TrackRRUpdat es".

(Dudl ey) Yes. | have it. Thank you.
Okay. Great. You and | have the same Excel
skills.

So, would you agree that there are 25
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76

adj ustnments that the Company included in this

update that tied either to a specific audit issue

or a data request?

A (Ni xon) The list there shows that there were 26

i ssues identified.
Ckay.

A (Ni xon) I'm not | ooking at the exhibit. [''m

| ooki ng at the original Corrections and Update.

Did it change?

Q It didn't change. | would say |I m scounted.
But, for ne, it starts on Row -- wel
so, Row 7 are the updates that were included
the original filing. And | may not have count
t hose.
A (Ni xon) Okay.
Q Does t hat make sense?
A (Ni xon) Yes.
Q And, then, it goes down to --
A (Ni xon) | was | ooking at the --
Q -- Row 32.
[ Court reporter interruption - multi

parties speaking simultaneously.]
CONTI NUED BY THE W TNESS:

A (Ni xon) | was looking -- | was |ooking at the

I,
n

ed

pl e
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reference nunber.

BY MS. RALSTON:

Q

A

Yes. Apologies, | wasn't clear. Do you agree
that utilities routinely submt updated revenue
requi rements as part of a rate case?

(Dudl ey) They do. But, as | said earlier,

Ms. Ral ston, associated with expenses that are
ei ther included above or below the Iine.

And, so, | think you stated earlier, M. Dudl ey,
that this -- you believe this revenue requirenment
update is unusual, and you wouldn't consider this
typical ?

(Dudley) It's not typical from what we've seen,
because it's largely accounting adjustments to
accounting errors.

And your opinion is based on -- what is your
opi ni on based on, that this is an atypical

adj ust nent ?

(Dudl ey) 1've never seen one |ike this.

Is it your position that the Conmpany's
adjustnments to the revenue requirenment included
in the November 27th Update were inmproper or

I naccur ate?

(Dudl ey) We don't know about the accuracy. W
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haven't been able to determ ne the accuracy.

What we do know is that, based on counsel's
representation on January 4th, that apparently
there's another update forthcom ng.

Right. And that would be a separate adjustnment.
(Dudl ey) But we don't know that.

But you don't -- right. But you're not taking a
position, | guess is what you're saying, on

whet her or not the adjustnents that have already
been made were inmproper or inaccurate?

(Dudl ey) Our position is that we need -- we would
need an opportunity to study those to determ ne
whet her or not they are accurate. And we'd have
to perform confirmation and verification.

Getting back to the typical rate case,
and the typical update, regardi ng expenses above
or below the line, those are known and
measur able. These amounts here that |'m seeing,
| don't know whet her or not they are known and
measur abl e. | have nothing to check them
against. So, it would require an in-depth review
that the Department didn't have an opportunity to
perform

And, again, this is unusual. W
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typically don't deal with numerous accounting
adjustnments to correct accounting errors in an
update. We also are typically provided with a
technical statement that describes in detail each
adjustment that's made. These are just cursory
notes that |I'm | ooking at right now that don't
really provide any detail.

But you do acknowl edge the Company included that
first tab that explained the basis for each of

t he adjustments, and then together -- and there
was a filing letter, | believe, that expl ained
what the Conpany had included with this update?
Woul d you agree with that?

(Dudl ey) | agree that there's a one-page filing
letter.

Is it the panel's position that the Conpany's
FERC Form 1 was not accurate at the time it was
prepared?

(Dudl ey) You want that one?

(Moran) Yes. | can address that one for you. I
can say that the map that was provided tied the
SAP year-end figures to the FERC Form 1. I
cannot say if those entries were accurate.

So, no, | can't say that the FERC
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Form 1 was accurate.
And that, what is that based on, your -- is that
based on your audit investigation?
(Moran) Correct.
I now have a few questions related to customer
billing issues. And |I'Il just open these up to
t he panel.

In the Motion to Dism ss, the
Depart ment of Energy stated that "I nmplementation
of SAP had Resulted in Significant Custoner
Conmpl aints to the Department”. And does the
panel see that section of the Motion that begins
on Page 207?
(Ni xon) Vhich item number are you referring to?
| amreferring just generally to Section VIl of
the Motion that begins on Page 20, regarding
customer conpl aints.

OCkay. And, then, on Page 1 of the
Motion to Dism ss, the Department of Energy is
arguing that the case nust be dism ssed because
"the 2022 financial information on which the Rate
Filing is based cannot be reasonably relied on
and therefore Liberty has not and cannot neet its

burden to provide [sic] that the proposed rates
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are just and reasonable.” Do you also see that
on Page 1 of the Motion?

(Moran) Yes.

Is it the Department's position that the
Conmpany's financial information is the cause of
the increase in customer contacts with the
Depart ment ?

(Ni xon) | believe, as indicated in DOE witnesses,
yes, there was -- there have been a significant
I ncrease in customer contacts with the

Depart ment .

And is it your position that those are related to
the financial information that we've been

di scussing, the unreliability of the financial

i nformation?

(Ni xon) Yes, some of them a significant amount.
In fact, a study -- a survey done by the
Conpany -- or, that's done independently,
confirmed that as well.

Confirmed --

(Nixon) It's not contacts with the Departnment,
but that there was customer dissatisfaction
because of this system

MR. DEXTER: M. Chairman, if | could
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interrupt? We didn't name Amanda Noonan as a
wi t ness. Amanda Noonan is the Director of the
Consumer Services Division at the Department.
And she is famliar with the issue of customer
contacts and the customer survey results that
Ms. Ni xon just identified.

So, | wonder, | don't know how much
gquestioning, we didn't know this was going to be
an issue today, but Ms. Noonan is available to
answer these question, if that's appropriate?

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Does the -- would
the Conmpany |ike to put Ms. Noonan on the stand?

MS. RALSTON: | don't know if it's
necessary. | guess it depends on whether or not
t he Department of Energy intends to support its
Moti on using customer conpl aints.

I think that, on Page 1, they're
arguing that the Mdtion is based on the financi al
records. And, if the Department agrees the
financial records are not related to the all eged
increase in customer conplaints, we don't need to
go further.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Attorney Dexter.

MR. DEXTER: No, | think we're -- our
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point is the opposite. That the inplementation
of the SAP system included a billing system and
an accounting system and that the inplenmentation
of the billing system went poorly, and resulted
in increased customer conplaints and a decrease
In customer satisfaction, as laid out in the Luth
survey that was provided with the Moti on.

So, we believe that they are
i nterrel at ed.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: So, let's do this.
Let's put Ms. Noonan on the stand, so that we
can -- we can reach closure on that particul ar
topic.

| also note that we are about an hour
and 35 mnutes in, and the court reporter wil
need a break. So, what 1'd recommend is we take
a brief break at this point for the court
reporter, who still has to type through ny
tal king, and return at a quarter of. Then, maybe
go for another half hour, 45 m nutes, take a
|l unch break, and then come back. We'll try to
wrap up with this panel before we take lunch, if
at all possible.

So, let's take a break now, and return
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at a quarter of. Thank you. Off the record.
(Recess taken at 11:37 a.m, and the
hearing reconvened at 11:50 a.m)
CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. We'll go back

on the record.

First, we'll swear in the witness, Ms.
Noonan, who is seated next to M. Dexter. And,
then, once that's conplete, we'll nove back to

Ms. Ral ston and cross.
(Wher eupon AMANDA O. NOONAN was duly
sworn by the Court Reporter, and added
to the DOE witness panel.)
CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Pl ease resunme, Ms.
Ral st on.
MR. DEXTER: M. Chairman, should | ask
Ms. Noonan a couple of introductory questions?
CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: Of course. That
woul d be great. Thank you.
MR. DEXTER: Okay.
AMANDA O. NOONAN, SWORN
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR. DEXTER:
Q Ms. Noonan, would you please state your name and

position with the Department?
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A

(Noonan) Of course. M nane is Amanda Noonan.
I'mthe Director of the Consumer Services
Di vi si on at the Departnment of Energy.
And, Ms. Noonan, did you file witten testinony
on December 13th, 2023, in this docket?
(Noonan) Yes, | did.
And did that testinmny contain a description of
your professional and educational experience as
it relates to this docket?
(Noonan) Yes, it did.

MR. DEXTER: Okay. Thank you. Ms.
Noonan is avail able for questions.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Pl ease
proceed, Ms. Ral ston.

MS. RALSTON: Okay. And, Ms. Noonan,
am not sure if you were in the room So, I'm
going to just restate the question that | had
started to ask.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON (resumed)

BY MS. RALSTON:

Q

And, so, | had referred the panel to the Modtion
to Dism ss, at Page 20, which is where the
Depart ment of Energy has a section of the Motion

regarding the SAP inmplementation and resulting

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Cust omer Conpl ai nts. Do you see that section? |
think it's on Page 20.
(Noonan) | don't have it open in front of me.
But, please, go ahead.
Okay. The section is called "Liberty's SAP
| mpl ementation Resulted in Significant Custoner
Conpl aints to the Department”, just for
reference.

And, then, | also referred the panel to
Page 1 of the Modtion, where the Department of
Energy argued that the case nmust be di sm ssed
because "the 2022 financial information on which
the filing is based cannot be reasonably relied

on. Do you see that on Page 1 of the Motion?
(Noonan) Yes.

And is it your position that the Conpany's
financial information is the cause of the

i ncrease in customer contacts with the

Depart ment ?

(Noonan) | think there's a causal relationship
bet ween t he two.

And, on Page 21 of the Motion, it states that,

during "the 12 nmonths follow ng inplementation of

the SAP system the DOE received 121 Billing and

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Billing Adjustment contacts", versus "14" during
the twelve nmonths prior to inplementation of the
system Do you see that?

(Noonan) Yes. | do.

Okay. And are you aware that, in |late 2022,
there was a substantial increase in electric
bills due to increased comodity pricing, with

Li berty's rate increasing from 10 cents to 22
cents, beginning with service on August 1st of
2022, a rate increase that was reflected in bills
I ssued starting in Septenmber of 2022, just prior
to the SAP inplenmentation?

(Noonan) Yes, | am

Ckay. Can | now ask you to turn to Exhibit 8, at
Bat es Page 341, which is the Luth Research survey
included with the Motion to Dism ss. And let me
know when you have the exhibit?

(Noonan) |I'm sorry. \What was the page nunber
again?

Hang on one second. Bates Page 341. If you're
in the Motion to Dism ss attachment, |ooks |ike
it's 336. | don't know if that's hel pful.
(Noonan) Okay. Could you cite the number in the

report itself, the page number in the report

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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itself? 1'msorry. That's the docunent that I
have open.
Q G ve me one monment. | apologize, | think | got

it turned around with the overl appi ng Bates
nunmbers.

MR. DEXTER: So, if it helps, the Luth
survey starts in Exhibit 8, on Bates Page 310.

MS. RALSTON: Thank you, Attorney
Dexter.

BY MS. RALSTON:

Q And the page | was looking for is Page 12 of the
survey itself. And, if you give nme one nmonment, |
can find the Bates page.

It is Bates Page 321 of Exhibit 8. And
| apol ogize for the del ay.

So, now that we are all there, do you
see the bullet that states that cost is still the
top conplaint mentioned by dissatisfied
customers?

(Noonan) Yes, | do.

Q Okay. And would you agree that cost is not
related to SAP i nplementation?
(Noonan) That's correct.

Q Okay. And would you agree that there can be

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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89

ot her custonmer issues that are not related to
SAP? For exanple, a nmeter reading question or a
billing issue that m ght be related to a

custoner's change in circunstance,

A (Noonan) AlIl of t

that you just cit

billing system

of the billing system such as a neter

a move, but
the resolution or
t hose issues.

Q So, it's your

moves, and, for

notice to the Conpany,

a residence they

the billing systemitself wl

testinony that, if

exanpl e,

l'i ke noving?

hose -- or, those two reasons

ed are certainly impacted by the
Even though they may be outside

change or

i mpact

t he appropriate handling of

a custonmer

didn't provide any

continued to get bills for

no | onger reside at, that that

woul d be related to the SAP inplementation?

(Noonan) In that

Q Ckay. So,

there are other

my question was,

customer

particul ar instance, no.

woul d you agree that

i ssues that are non- SAP

rel ated? So, would you agree that there can be
customer issues not related to SAP?

A (Noonan) Sure. In the abstract, there could be,
yes.

Q Okay. So, noting that there can be custoner
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contacts that are unrelated to the SAP

i mpl ement ati on, how did the DOE categorize

whet her an incom ng conplaint was related to SAP
or not?

(Noonan) The categorization of contacts to the
Department's Consumer Division are not tied to a
billing systemused by a utility. They're tied
to the reason for contact. However, review of

t hese shows that the overwhelmng majority, if
not all of them were related to some billing
system i ssue.

So, if the Departnent isn't categorizing them
based on their relationship to the billing
system how was that determ nation being made?
(Noonan) By a manual review of all of the
contacts.

And what criteria was that manual review using?
(Noonan) The information that was provided by the
customer, and the response provided by the
Conmpany.

So, was there a set of criteria or was it on a
case- by-case basis?

(Noonan) They were all manually revi ewed

I ndi vi dual | y.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Q

Q

So, is that a case-by-case basis or were there a

set of criteria being used by a Department staff?

(Noonan) It was a case-by-case review.

Okay. And does the Department of Energy have

a

breakdown, by nmonth, of the conplaints related to

SAP conversion, or SAP versus non- SAP conpl ai nts?

(Noonan) Again, that's not -- that's not a reason

for contact within the Division's database.

However, we do have a nonth-by-month count or

can

produce a mont h-by-month report of contacts on

any given utility, and the reason why the

customer reached out to the Department.

OCkay. And just to be clear, but it wouldn't be

broken down by its relation to the SAP
conversion?

(Noonan) Again, that's not a reason in the
dat abase for why we track contacts to the
Depart ment .

Ckay.

(Noonan) Custoners don't specifically say that

's

why they're calling. They're calling about their

bill, and an issue that's transpired as a result

of sonething el se.

Woul d you agree that it is normal for a custoner,

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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or typical, for customer contacts to increase
after a system conversion?

(Noonan) There are certainly always bunmps that
follow a system conversion. That is definitely
the case. However, we found the nunber of issues
that followed this particular conversion to be
abnor mal .

What | evel of custonmer conpl aints would the
Depart ment of Energy have expected?

(Noonan) | don't have an expectation for a
certain number. |It's the severity of the issues,
the quantity early on. There's no set
expectation that "this nunber is good" and "t hat
number is bad." It's just a conparative between
past experience.

So, the determ nation here that the nunmber of
contacts was unusual is based on your experience?
(Noonan) It's based on experience. It's based on
| ooki ng back to see what transpired foll ow ng

ot her system conversions with other utilities.
Referring back to the Motion, at Page 21, the
Department of Energy noted that, prior to its
system conversion, Eversource had "70 Billing and

Billing Adjustnent contacts", and that this

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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A

number doubled following its system conversion to
"138". Do you see that?

(Noonan) Yes.

Okay. And would you agree that the number of
Billing and Billing Adjustnments for Liberty was
still lower than Eversource's, even with its
increase follow ng the conversion?

(Noonan) |I'm sorry, could you repeat that?

Sure. And maybe | should, before | ask you that
question again, if you |look up to the paragraph
above that, it says that "the Departnment received
121 Billing and Billing Adjustment contacts" for
Li berty. So, would you agree that Liberty had
fewer Billing and Billing Adjustment contacts

t han Eversource after its conversion?

(Noonan) Yes. The absolute nunbers, that's the
case. However, there's a significant disparity
bet ween the nunber of customers for the two
utilities.

Did the Comm ssion Staff, as the predecessor to
t he Departnment of Energy, recomend di sm ssal of
Eversource's 2009 rate case as a result of that
I ncrease in customer contacts?

(Noonan) No.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Q

OCkay. Would you expect that customer contacts
will return to at or about baseline at the
pre-conversion |l evel, once the new systemis
stabilized?

(Noonan) It's difficult to say what future trends

m ght arise. But, typically, after a period of

time, the conplaint or contact levels will [evel
of f.
Okay. Are you aware that, in the first six

nmont hs of 2023, so, from January into June, that
Li berty reported 10.3 customer contacts per nonth
related to billing and billing adjustnments?
(Noonan) | wouldn't have any idea what Liberty's
records were regarding that.

Okay. So, are you -- are you aware then that, in
the five nonths, fromJuly to November 2023,

Li berty reported only 6.8 customer contacts per
month related to billing and billing adjustnments,
representing a 34 percent decrease fromthe first
si X mont hs of 20237

(Noonan) Again, | have no access to Liberty's

I nf or mati on.

Can | now refer you to Bates Page 266 of

Exhi bit 8, which provides a "Summary of Del ayed

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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I nvoi ces"? And you can just |let ne know when
you're there.

MR. DEXTER: Attorney Ral ston, could
you provide the page reference again pl ease?

MS. RALSTON: | said "266", but | think
that may be incorrect. That may have been the
ol d Bates nunber.

Yes. So, it is, for Exhibit 8, the
correct Bates number is 240.

MR. DEXTER: We just need a mnute to
get there.

MS. RALSTON: Take your tine. | f
you're referring to the attachnment to the Moti on,
it's Attachment 5.

MR. DEXTER: Excuse me. The witness is
right next to me, and | can't resist the urge to
hel p her out, if that's okay with the Bench? [|'m
just trying to get her to the right --

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER:  Yes.

MR. DEXTER: -- to the right page.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Yes, pl ease.

MR. DEXTER: Thank you. The witness is
on the right page.

MS. RALSTON: Okay. Great.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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MR. DEXTER: W th no help from ne.
MS. RALSTON: Il will try to make this

all worth our while.

BY MS. RALSTON:

Q

So, do you see the chart on that page call ed
"Summary of Del ayed | nvoices and Resol ution by
Dat e and Dol | ar"?
(Noonan) Yes.
Okay. Wuld you agree that this summary table
demonstrates that the Company had essentially
caught up on the delayed billing by March of
20237
(Noonan) For the accounts that were identified
for the Departnment in January of 2023, it does
appear that the issues with those specific group
of accounts had been primarily addressed by March
of 2023.

However, there were additional accounts
that continued to be problematic that were

per haps not identified in that initial nunber.

Thank you, Ms. Noonan. | now have just a few
addi ti onal questions that | believe are for M.
Dudl ey.

One follow-up question regarding the

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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> O >» O

revenue requirement update. This morning you
stated, | believe, and you can correct nme if |I'm
m sstating, that "when a utility files its
revenue requirenment update, it always includes a
technical statement.” Was that your position
this norning?

(Dudl ey) That's been our experience, yes.

Ckay. Are you aware that, in Docket DE 21-030,

Unitil did not include a technical statement?
(Dudl ey) 1'd have to check on that. | don't
recal | .

Ckay.

(Ni xon) May | add to that?

Sur e.

(Ni xon) So, and | can't remenmber which case |

| ooked, but | remenmber -- | recall that, once the
update was filed, it was in response to a data
request. So, sometimes it is filed that way as
well. | cannot cite the case. So, there was
explanation with the data response.

Okay. Wuld you also agree then, Ms. Ni xon or
M. Dudley, that, if the case were to proceed,
and the Conmpany was afforded the opportunity to

provi de rebuttal testimony, it could provide

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Q

addi ti onal explanations as part of its rebuttal
testi nony?

(Dudl ey) Certainly.

Thank you. M. Dudley, the Modtion to Dism ss
references -- one second, |'m sorry.

M. Dudley, in your testinmony you filed
in this proceeding, there's references to an
"“August 2016 Liberty Consulting Group Report", is
t hat accurate?

(Dudl ey) Yes, it is.

Okay. And did that Consulting report include any
recommendations related to the Conpany's
financial accounting?

(Dudl ey) It did. It did cover -- the managenent
audit was quite broad, and it did cover the area
of accounti ng.

Are you aware that the Liberty Consulting Group
prepared a supplemental report in November of
20177

(Dudl ey) Yes, | am

Okay. And did you review that suppl enmental
report?

(Dudl ey) Yes, | did.

And do you recall if that supplenmental report

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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descri bed the progress made by the Company in
I mpl ementing the recomendations fromthe 2016
report?
(Dudl ey) | recall that it noted inmprovenents in
the area of custoner service. However, we found
Li berty's -- that the Consulting's findings, in
terms of capital investnment, to be inclusive.
And woul d you agree that the information in that
suppl emental report could be hel pful to the
Comm ssion, if it were to consider the 2016
report?
(Dudl ey) It would be hel pful. ' m not sure how
hel pful it would be to Liberty. And the reason
why | say that is, because, as part of their
updated review, Liberty Consulting reviewed four
addi ti onal projects. To be specific, those
projects were the Concord Training Center, the
CNG Conpressor Project, the Keene Conversion
Project, and the |IT Expenditures Bl anket Project.
And what they found was a continuation of the
deficiencies that they had reported in the
original Audit Report.

Now, they did -- they did correct

themsel ves in the update on that, because the --
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Q

it was a matter of timng. And, by that, | nean
that the four projects that they had revi ewed
were 2016 projects, they had been initiated.
Some of them conpleted prior to Liberty
Consulting issuing their findings and their
reconmendat i ons.

However, as a followup, they did | ook
at the Keene LNG Project, which was a 2017
project. And they canme to the conclusion that
simlar deficiencies were continuing. But
Li berty did find that a few of the
recommendati ons had been adopted by Liberty
Uilities. One of those being the percentage
variances in budgeting. Li berty had adopted
Li berty Consulting's recommendati on of a range of
5 to 10 percent. That was included in Liberty's
policy and procedures. Liberty also adopted the
nmonthly comm ttee neetings to discuss the
vari ances.

And, excuse ne, the third one adopted
was the adoption of the project close-out report,
and that was made a part of Liberty -- again,

Li berty's policies and procedures.

Thank you. And, then, just a couple final

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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gquestions. Again, | believe these are for you,
M. Dudl ey.

Earlier, Attorney Dexter had asked the
panel's opinion on the Conpany's proposal for the
90-day stay and the third party review. Do you
recall those questions?
(Dudl ey) | do, yes.
Ckay. And one of your statenments was that "the
Conmpany wanted to use an auditor that it has an
exi sting relationship.” Do you remenber stating
t hat ?
(Dudl ey) That's my understanding fromthe
January 4th hearing, yes.
And do you recall, fromthe January 4th hearing,
when | expl ained that the reason for that was
timng?
(Dudl ey) Vaguely, yes.
OCkay. And do you also recall the Conpany
offering to let the Department of Energy weigh in
on selection of the auditor or -- and/or the
process for performng that third party review?
(Dudl ey) Yes, | do.

MS. RALSTON: Okay. That's all the

Company has. Thank you.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Thank you. We'l]|
turn now to Comm ssi oner questions, beginning
wi th Comm ssioner Sinpson.

"1l just check first, to see if the
OCA or Dartmuth Coll ege has any questions for
Ms. Noonan?

MR. KREI'S: W have no questions for
Ms. Noonan.

MR. GETZ: No questions, M. Chairman.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Thank you.
We'll turn to Comm ssioner Sinpson then.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Thank you. And I'l
first turn to Attorney Ral ston.

I|"m struggling to find the FERC Form
that was filed in exhibits. |If the Conpany could
identify the exhibit, and, if it's not in an
exhibit, in the record, and the correspondi ng
page nunber, that would be hel pful.

"1l ask these wi tnesses sone
questions, but I'mlooking for that reference. I
can't find it.

MS. RALSTON: You're | ooking for the
FERC Form 17

CMSR. SI MPSON: Yes.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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MS. RALSTON: Okay.

CMSR. SIMPSON: That's filed as an
annual report. But |I'mlooking for it herein.
Thank you.

MS. RALSTON: Okay. Thank you.

CMSR. SI MPSON: And pl ease, when you
find it, let me know.

MS. RALSTON: | will. Thank you.

BY CMSR. SI MPSON:

Q

So, I"'mjust first wondering, particularly for
Ms. Moran, the audit process that you went

t hrough was clearly very thorough. Did you feel
that the Conpany was transparent and confident in
their responses and engagement with the Audit
team t hroughout that process?

(Moran) Partially yes and partially no. But ,
like the time it took to have some of our audit
requests answered, caused significant del ays. I
mean, we had one question that was outstanding
for 77 days. And, by the time we get that kind
of response, the reason we even asked m ght have
passed through our brain already.

Uh- huh.

(Moran) The process could have been nmuch faster,

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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and nmore direct, had we had access, as we have in
prior audits in prior years, to the people who
actually do the work. | understand that our
questions go through the regulatory review as if
their data requests. And | understand that, for
tracking purposes. But it made it much nore
difficult to have a back-and-forth.

Did you feel that, when questions were raised and
responses were provided, that there was
confidence in the response provided to the

Depart ment ?

(Moran) If we had foll owup questions, we al ways
asked, and they provided answers to us.

OCkay. And | believe |I understand your testinony
to be, with respect to the tinme, Attorney Ral ston
asked you a question about "did the Departnent
seek more time in asking questions and seeking
responses?" And you testified "no" to that
question, correct?

(Moran) That's correct. When we finally get to
the stage where we issue a draft report, as |
stated earlier, we started the audit in May. So,
we took five months before we finally issued a

draft report.
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@)

o » O >

In the interim there were |ots of
ot her audits taking place. And we finally have
to stop and say "This audit's done."” W 're doing
ot her audits, that I won't get into. But, yes,
sooner or |ater, we have to just say "No, we're
done. "
And, of course, --
(Moran) And that's really where we cane to.
Of course, there's a procedural schedule in
pl ace, with hearing dates set --
(Moran) Right.
-- for this proceeding.
(Moran) Correct.
And you have to work through the audit process in
line with that procedural schedule, if |
under stand correctly?
(Moran) Typically, the audit is not part of a
procedural schedul e. In a perfect world, the
audit work and the final report would be done
before the first set of data requests are issued.
That didn't happen here, just because of tim ng.
Timng is a reason for a |ot of things that
happen.

But we really try to get the Audit

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Report to the Regulatory Staff, so they can | ook
it over. If there are things they want to | ook
into further, they can use the Audit Report as
the basis for some of their data requests.

(Dudl ey) Comm ssioner Simpson, if | my
interject?

Pl ease.

(Dudl ey) And | agree with Ms. Moran. That the
Audit Report is considered a key piece of

i nformation for Department Staff, and also for
our cost of service consultant. She also relies
on those findings to issue her final conclusions
about the revenue requirenent.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Okay. Thank you.
Attorney Ral ston?

MS. RALSTON: So, it's nmy understanding
that the FERC Form 1 is filed routinely with the
Comm ssion. And that is the version we have been
relying on.

If you would like it submtted
separately as a formal exhibit, we would be happy
to do that. And | would al so make that offer,
because | think, on the |ast hearing day, you

noted there were "some presentation issues”.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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CMSR. S| MPSON:  Yes.

MS. RALSTON: And it's my understandi ng
that is a function of the software used to upl oad
the formto FERC. But there is a way that we
could get you a "clean" copy. So, we would be
happy to do that, if that would assist you. Or,
we could even send it during the lunch break, or,
you know, see what happens, for this afternoon,

i f that would be hel pful?

CMSR. SI MPSON: Do you know if the
Depart ment was provided with a "clean" copy of
the forn?

MS. RALSTON: | believe that they're --
they have access to the version that's avail able
online. W were not aware that anyone was having
trouble reviewing it. So, | would have to defer
to them if they're having trouble with the same
presentation issues.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Okay. Because | still
just see the one that's filed on the Department's
website as an annual -- electric annual report.
And | wanted to ask these witnesses, how did they
even conprehend the data that's afforded in this

form? Because, when | |ook at it, I just can't

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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tell what is accurate and what isn't, given the
presentation problem

MS. RALSTON: Yes. And | don't know,
mean, the Department of Energy could expl ain,
don't if maybe they need to respond, --

CMSR. SI MPSON: Okay.

MS. RALSTON: =-- if they have the
software, |'m not sure. But we woul d be happy to
provide one that elimnates that presentation
I ssue.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Okay. Thank you for

t hat . So, I'll ask these witnesses.

BY CMSR. SI MPSON:

Q

Q

You did review the FERC Form 1 that the Conpany
filed for 2022, correct?

(Dudl ey) Yes.

(Ni xon) Yes.

Did you see the same presentation issues that
|'ve noted nultiple tinmes now?

(Ni xon) Yes.

' m | ooking at the form page -- or, pdf Pages 45,
46, 47, 48.

(Moran) If 1 may?

Pl ease.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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A

(Moran) Our auditor asked for a |legible copy, and
we do have one.
You do. Okay. So, you were able to, at |east
fromthe Conpany's data, get a version of this
formthat was --
(Moran) Legi bl e.
Legi bl e. Okay.
(Moran) And Attorney Ralston is correct. This is
a FERC i ssue, not a Conmpany issue, not a
Depart ment of Energy issue.
Excell ent. Thank you for that.
(Ni xon) But, if | can speak for myself, that the
version we have is the same version you have.
(Dudl ey) Yes.
(Ni xon) Audit was the only one that had a
separate one.

CMSR. SI MPSON:  Okay. I f the Conpany
could file that, that would be appreciated?

MS. RALSTON: Yes. We will get that
t oday.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Thank you.

MS. RALSTON: And | apologize. And, in
the future, we would just ask that, you know, if

someone had |et us know, we would have gotten

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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this in nmuch earlier. So, | do apologize for
t hat issue.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: We'Il just make that
"Exhi bit 9".

(Exhibit 9 reserved)

BY CMSR. SI MPSON:

Q

At the beginning of direct, Ms. Moran, you were
asked some questions about a "payroll report", do
you recall that?

(Moran) | do.

My understanding thus far is that the information
provi ded by the Conpany, prior to October of

2022, isn't of concern. That the data that was
originally in the Conmpany's Great Plains system
you had confidence in. And it was the data that
t hen was provided for October '22 through
December '22 that mgrated fromthe SAP systemis
where you have a concern. But, please el aborate.
(Moran) Well, I'm not sure that's conpletely
correct. Because what we | ooked at was the
year-end payroll register, so that, of course,
woul d include the entire test year. And we were
unable to verify the payroll systemto the

general | edger.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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So, there wasn't a nont h-by-nonth
review of the payroll register to Great Pl ains,
and then to SAP. It was a year-end review, and
we couldn't acconplish that.

Was Great Plains used for both the general | edger

and the payroll system historically?

(Moran) |, frankly, am not aware of what system
the payroll was. But | don't think it was the
same.

And, to your know edge, is payroll and the
general | edger now managed by the Conpany in the
SAP environment ?

(Moran) |I'm unsure.

Ckay. So, you neither have confidence in the
data that was provided from Great Pl ains nor SAP?
(Moran) I'mnot sure I'd phrase it that way.
Because, as | said, we |ooked at the year-end
payroll register. So, assum ng the Great Pl ains
activity for the year nmoved to the correct SAP
account, understanding the mapping issues, there
could be an issue, there could not be, | mean, it
coul d be fine.

Uh- huh.

(Moran) But we were unable to determne if any of

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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the payroll accounts within the SAP systemt hat
woul d show to which expense account or which
capital accounts any of the payroll dollars hit.
Okay. Thank you.

(Moran) Sure.

And this is for the entire panel. Is it the
Department's position or understandi ng that
there's a forthcom ng revenue requirement update
t hat the Conpany will be providing for this case?
(Dudl ey) That was our understanding from counsel
fromthe January 4th hearing, yes.

But you have not yet received an update to the
revenue requirement?

(Dudl ey) Well, | assume that we will receive it,
dependi ng on whether or not the rate case

conti nues.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Does the Depart ment
have any position as to whether or not FERC or
securities regulators should be contacted, given
the concerns that arise fromthe information
that's been provi ded?

And |'m happy to direct that at
Attorney Dexter.

MR. DEXTER: Well, | guess |I'd give the

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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same answer | gave on January 4th, which was that
we haven't | ooked into that.

CMSR. SI MPSON:  Ckay.

MR. DEXTER: And, again, we've been
focused on the rate case, and the inpacts of the
i nformation on the rate case. And don't have a
position on, you know, what m ght need to be done
at the FERC, that hasn't been our focus.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Okay. Thank you.

BY CMSR. SI MPSON:

Q

So, then, my |ast question for the Departnent

wi t ness panel, as a general matter, do you have
concerns about the financial health of this
utility?

(Dudl ey) We don't know. We are deeply concerned
about the mapping issues. W are deeply
concerned by the fact that Audit was unable to
verify the accuracy of some of the corrections
that were made.

And whet her or not that inmpacts the
financial stability of Liberty? | think it's
really a matter of correctly processing
accounting information. In other words, | think

the revenue dollars are there. Certainly, we're

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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aware that SAP -- one of the functions of SAP is

a cash managenment component. We don't know how

that's working. We're only aware of the inpacts

regarding the general |edger and the accounting.

But our assunption is that it's probably working

okay.

But | really don't -- | don't have any

information at my fingertips, Comm ssioner

Si npson, to give you a specific answer.

Agai n, we are concerned about the way
the information is reported and the accuracy of

that i nformati on. But, whether or not it has a

detrimental inpact on Liberty as a going concern,

we really don't know.
CMSR. SI MPSON: Okay. Thank you.

That's all | have, M. Chairnman.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. We'Il nmove to

Comm ssi oner Chattopadhyay.

CMSR. CHATTOPADHYAY: Good afternoon.

BY CMSR. CHATTOPADHYAY:

Q | think you probably recall that there was, on
the 4th, during the hearing, there was sone
di scussion about -- | think it was Attorney

Dexter who had said, you know, "the facts were

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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laid out in the Modtion, and no one has disputed
them " And, then, the Conpany essentially said
that, |'m going to go there, actually, in the
transcript right now, that they -- they
"under stood that the adjustments were necessary”,
and their position was that -- that "the 2022
books is not the starting point", those
adj ustnents, you know, like |I said, "were
necessary", like they were made. And it was
stated that "they were made, they were expl ained,
they were supported.”

So, | want to get a sense of whether
DOE agrees that the adjustnments that the Conmpany
is tal king about, you agree that they were
expl ai ned and they were supported?
(Moran) 1'11 start, just fromthe Audit
perspective. \When the Conpany says they "did the
adjustnments”, | think it's nmore along the |lines
that they adjusted the Rate Filing. They didn't
adj ust their SAP account structure, they didn't
adj ust the FERC, because they essentially used
numbers that they thought should be there, not
t he numbers that were there.

So, from Audit's perspective, it's not

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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really a relevant statement, because the test
year 2022 figures were what they were.

Jay?

You know, anything others may want to add?

(Ni xon) Go ahead. Yes. Go ahead.

(Dudl ey) Yes. Well, | agree with Ms. Moran.
Whet her -- the problemis accuracy, and whet her
or not they're accurate; we don't know.

In terms of the test year, yes,
adjustments were made in the 2022 test year to
that. And our understanding, again, is that nore
adj ustments are com ng.

In terms of adjusting the SAP mapping
errors, those largely occurred in 2023. In 2022,
t he books were closed. They can't be changed.
There's no going back to fix them They're
cl osed.

But, now, we're -- again, we've been
made aware, in the last hearing, on January 4th,
that Liberty is discovering additional mapping
I ssues. And that, as | explained to M. Dexter
earlier this morning, there will likely be
additional corrections made in 2024.

So, all of those things conbined,

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Comm ssi oner Chattopadhyay, make us very uneasy,

in terms of reliability of the test year nunbers,

and whet her or not 2022 is still a viable test
year.
(Nixon) And 1'd like to add to that. 1'd like to

add to that that, and | don't have it in front of
me, but | believe there's an attestation that the
Conpany needs to make, and, as part of that, they
have to verify that they've indicated any
differences in the filing, and that was not made.
But the attestation was made, but that that

di fference was not made, is what |'m
under st andi ng.

Again, | can't pull up the reg right in
front of me quickly, but there is a requirenment
to do that.

On January 4th, there was, |ike you nmentioned,
the Conmpany made us aware of additional SAP

i ssues. And, as | understood it, it was probably
noted or those issues were noted before the end
of the | ast year.

But has there been any back-and-forth
for you to know a little bit more and then -- and

come to some conclusion about there m ght be

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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ot her changes that's happening in 2024 for being
not ed, you know, as issues with the SAP? Are you
aware of it or have you had -- did you continue
t he conversation with the Conpany about that?
(Dudl ey) No. There were no conversations with
t he Conmpany, because the period for discovery had
expired.
Ckay. So, this is a question for -- really
related to the audit, so, I'mgoing to ask this
to Ms. Karen Moran. So, |'m going to quickly,
this is -- it's a general question.

When there's a rate case filing, and
l''m not an auditor, | just -- | mght use terns
that are not exactly the way you use them but --
so, there's an annual report, and then there's a
rate case filing. You're trying to reconcile
them as much as possible, right?
(Moran) Correct.
And, in prior rate cases that you' ve worked on
such, in other words, for so many years, |ike
usually there are issues?
(Moran) Sure. MWhat we find are things |ike one
account is reflected on the report in the wrong

spot. They tell us why. [It's usually a

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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di fference between GAAP and FERC. We ki nd of

agree or disagree on that. But it's a

one-for-one. It's not the extent of the -- it's

not a problemthat the dollars within the account

that's in the wong spot can't be verified. You

know, we trace those anounts. W say "Yeah, that

account is right. It should be on the liability

side of the balance sheet, not the asset side."

Those are the kinds of issues we typically see.
What we saw in this case is distinctly

di fferent.

So, as | understand, and correct me if | get it

wrong, the kind of issues that you usually

di scover, when you're conparing, it's nore about,

you know, you may still have di sagreements, but

it's really about where things should go to, in

terms of account |ine nunmbers and things |ike

that ?

(Moran) Yes. And they're very m ni mal.

Ckay.

(Moran) You know, there m ght be one or two

accounts that we argue about.

So, in your experience, this instance, like in

this rate case, that problemis perhaps there,

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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but it's also significant, nunber one?
(Moran) That's correct.
And, number two, given what's going on, you're
not sure there m ght not be others that are out
there. |Is that a correct understandi ng?
(Moran) That's correct. Because we | ooked at
what we were able to verify, clearly, we didn't
find all of the m smapping issues. Because, as
M. Dudl ey has already said, things are turning
up a year later, as we |learned at the hearing a
coupl e weeks ago.
To keep it short, |I'"mjust going to go to the --
this is Exhibit 8, and again about audit. ' m
going to pick maybe a couple of exanples.

So, | ook at what you had for Audit
| ssue Number 2, | think it's Bates Page 152. And
t he Bates Page on the right extreme is 178. So,
just to be -- | think we're using 152. Let ne
know when you're there.
(Moran) 1I'mthere.
Okay. So, the "Audit Comment" at the end says:
“Audit concurs and requests that copies of any
adjusting journal entries be provided to Audit

wi thin 30 days of this Final report.” Did you

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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receive anythi ng?

(Moran) No.

Does t he DOE ot herwi se, not the Audit Division,
have anything to add? Like, when something |ike
this is flagged, do you follow up, and what
happens, if at all?

(Ni xon) We did not follow up and did not receive
anyt hi ng.

Okay. So, let's go to Bates Page 1 -- |'m going
to go there. So, let's go to Bates Page 169. A
very simlar question at the end, it says "Audit
concurs with the Conpany adjusting the filing."

So, these -- are these adjustnents
being foll owed through? Or, are you essentially
saying "all of these will be done next time
around" ?

So, I"'mtrying to understand whet her
any of the inmprovenments that you're tal king about
get reflected in the rate case?

(Moran) They should be reflected in the updated
revenue requirement schedules. Audit doesn't
review the updated filings, because the audit
takes place against the original filing. That's

why this is a tool that we give to the Regul atory

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Staff. So, they see all of these issues that say
“"the revenue requirement will be updated". And,
as Ms. Nixon said earlier, it's hard for themto

know i f these adjustments, if any, resulting from
data responses, if any are identified by the
Conpany, if they have all been included in the
updat ed revenue requirement schedul es.

Ckay. So, that's why I'"'mgoing to go to DOE and
ask whet her, for exanple, this one, which is
Audit |ssue Number 11, would you know t hat

whet her that was reflected properly in
recal cul ating the revenue requirenent?

(Ni xon) So, as | noted earlier, we were not able
to go back and verify. | mean, as | sat here, as
you were speaking, | went to the filings update
and saw that they listed it, and said it was
superseded by something else. But, literally,
just did that on the stand. W did not check and
verify that they have made every update that they
said they were going to update.

Can the DOE do that? | mean, doesn't have to do
It right away, but can that be a --

(Ni xon) Well, | guess our concern is that it

seens that the errors and updates are ongoing. |

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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mean, we just heard on January 4th there were
nore updates. So, we don't even have the | atest
update filing.

And | hesitate to offer that we can do
t hat, because that is an -- it seens |like a big
undertaking at this point.

So, let me put it differently. I think I

under stand the point about, when you have so many
m st akes, then you start worrying about "there

m ght be mpre", and, so, all of that is clouding
your approach to concluding that this is al

taken care of. Okay. So, that | fully
under st and.

What |'m asking is, there are these 28
audit issues, okay? And, to the extent you know
whet her they have been accounted for, the ones
that the Audit concurs in, then said "this is the
adj ustment that the Conpany has agreed to do",
that's what I'mtrying to check.

And it's not about -- |'m not saying
t hat, having made you go through that, you know,
I'mtherefore sort of also asking you what your
opi nion is about whether there may not be other

i ssues, okay. So, |I'mjust --

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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A

> O >» O

(Ni xon) So, let me just repeat what | think I
heard you were asking. Were you saying "Can the
Department or has the Departnment doubl e-checked
all of the issues that were addressed in the
audit and the data responses, and fix thenP?"

The ones where the Audit concurs?

(Ni xon) The Audit -- we have not done that.

Yes. And |I'm saying, is it possible to do that?
(Nixon) | guess I'd -- |I'd have to -- to the
extent it's in the filing, that is something --
that's something that our Departnment could do.
Yes.

(Nixon) If it's in the books and records, that's
somet hing that we don't dive into.

No, I'm tal king about in the filing?

(Ni xon) That's something that, yes, it is

somet hing theoretically it could do. But, as I
mentioned, |I'mworried that those aren't all the
errors and corrections.

That | understand. So, you can -- you know,
that's your position. But the ones that are
listed that it says "Audit concurs with the
Conmpany adjusting the filing", can you go back

and check?

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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(Nixon) And I -- | think I would have to | ook at

every one of them and see what it says.

Yes.

(Ni xon) But | believe that's something we could
do.

Yes.

(Ni xon) But | just want to note, there were a | ot

of statenments |ike that made in the data
responses as well. And, | mean, those were
numer ous. So, | --

Yes, | would -- | think what |I'm asking is, based
on the audit issues, there are 28 of them there
are some that the audit coment at the end is
“Audit concurs with the Conmpany adjusting the
filing."

(Dudl ey) Comm ssioner, it's one thing to do a

li ne-by-line verification to see whether or not
these categories were included. | mean, sure,
you can do that. Our problemis verification
for accuracy.

Agreed. | understand that.

(Dudl ey) Yes.

I mean, |'m not discounting it. |I'mjust --

(Dudl ey) Okay.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000125




N

& w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

126
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon| Trotti er| Dudl ey| Moran| Noonan]

CMSR. CHATTOPADHYAY: | think that's
all 1 have for now.
CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Just a quick
check with Attorney Dexter, before |I just have a
few questions. Wuld you prefer, Attorney
Dexter, to do redirect after a break or dive into
it after my questions, which won't be nmore than
five m nutes?
MR. DEXTER: | don't have a lot on
redirect. | think we could do it before the
| unch break.
CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Let's do that
t hen.
So, just a couple of questions.
BY CHAI RMAN GOLDNER:
Q Ms. Moran, your audit was a sanple audit, right?
You didn't go through every single line of the

Conpany's books and records?

A (Moran) Correct.

Q Yes. And, when you | ooked at issues, you
identified, | think, 28 Audit |ssues, and that
was -- this question was kind of asked earlier,
but I wanted to come back to it, that was kind of

out of how many? Did you |look in 28 areas and
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find 28 issues? Or, did you look in a few
hundred areas and find 28 issues?
(Moran) So, what we do, the entire Audit Staff,
there are five of us, we all have different areas
of, basically, the FERC Form 1 that we | ook at.
So, the bal ance sheet accounts, plant additions,
retirements, adjustnments, revenues, inconme
statement, debt. Those are the kinds of areas we
| ook at.

So, it's not that we all decide "I
found ten issues in this one section, should we
i nclude one?" That's not how it works. W go
t hrough, and we certainly see some areas that
have no issues. They tie to the books, the
supporting documentation is fine, that results in
no audit issue.

So, you can't -- you can't really | ook
at it in that context.
l'"mjust trying to understand. You nentioned
before that the issues were "significant". So,
we had sone | arge dollar issues, | understand
that piece of it.

['"mjust trying to understand what |

m ght call a "DPPM' level, an error level. Is

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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it, normally, you would | ook through the books
and records, and you -- and you said, | think,
before that you "normally find about the same
nunmber of issues”. The concern here is that the
dol lar figures were much higher with the audit
I ssues?
(Moran) It's not so much the dollar issues,
al though there are significant ones. The first
one on your request fromthe Bench, half a
billion dollars, that's a significant dollar
ampunt. But it's the mapping issue. [It's the
fact that we found expense accounts in bal ance
sheet accounts, or bal ance sheet accounts mapped
to expense accounts. And we've just never cone
across that kind of m smapping problem

And Audit |Issue Number 1 |ays out a
bunch of the problems, clearly not all of them
And that's much nore troubling to ne as an
auditor, than, at the end of the day, it netted
out to, you know, $500,000. |It's critical that
t he mapping be fixed.
Thank you. Second question is, so, this filing

fromthe Conpany was based on the books and

records from 2022, the test year. |f the Conpany

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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A

were to refile with a 2023 test year, or 2024
test year, what's your confidence that those
books and records would be I'Il call it "good
enough” to proceed with a rate case?
(Dudl ey) G ven the amount of corrections that
were made in 2023, we wouldn't consider 2023
reliable. W're basically in the sane place, M.
Chai r man.
(Ni xon) And | just want to add, | mean, given
that, at the |ast hearing, additional errors were
found, seens |like there's going to still continue
to be corrections into 2024. And to the extent,
at this point, we still have not gotten
verification that all the issues have been
corrected. So, we're -- we can't even -- we
don't know if they're corrected even to this day.
Okay. Thank you. Just one |ast two-part
guestion. And | believe you' ve already answered
this, but | just want to close the questioning
for the Department with a clarification.

And that is, does the Departnment
believe that it can proceed in the rate case with
t he books and records as they are?

(Dudl ey) No, we cannot.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Q

And Part B of the question is, if the

Conpany's -- if the Comm ssion were to approve

t he Conmpany's proposal for this three-nonth
delay, with an auditor comng in and review ng
the records, and ostensibly fixing the issues,
can you maybe summari ze the Department's position
again on that proposal ?

(Dudl ey) Well, the Departnment does not support

t he proposal, as far as we know, fromthe
Company. We don't think the auditor should be
chosen by the Conmpany, much | ess have a business
relationship with the Conmpany. That's not an

I ndependent third-party audit, in our estimation.
That's nmore kind of the "fox guarding the chicken
coop".

So, the other part -- the other piece
of that is, Liberty hasn't really specified the
qualifications of the auditor. We believe that
the auditor should have an expert |evel of
under st andi ng of the SAP system and how it works,
and how the mappi ng works. That should be a
requi rement. The auditor should also be -- have
an expert |evel of know edge regardi ng FERC

accounting and the FERC Chart of Accounts, and

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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how t hat works, and how the reporting works. W
also think that, incorporated into any type of
audit, there should be, as Ms. Moran nmentioned
earlier, an IT audit, as to how the SAP systemis
actually functioning, and how the conversion
process was carried out.

But, even then, M. Chairman, would we
have any | evel of conmfort? Well, we don't know.
Because would these -- would these auditors
actually capture all of the errors that exist out
there? We still don't know the extent of the
errors or how prolific they are.

But the problemis that this audit
woul d have to be very conmprehensive and very
exacting, which means that they would have to
actually get down on the transaction |evel, and
review nost of the transactions. That's a very
daunti ng task. Meani ng, that an audit |ike that
woul dn't be acconplished in 90 days. It would
probably be acconmplished in 120 days or nore.

So, and the other -- the other outconme
to consider, M. Chairman, is that, after all is
said and done, after all that work is conpleted,

the auditor may issue an adverse opinion, and

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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> O >» O

sinply state "We can't figure this out either.
We can't tie back all the numbers.” In which
case, they would issue an adverse opinion. And,
so, we're back to square one, after spending all

that time and noney.

Ckay. 11 just --

(Ni xon) And if -- and may | just add on?

Pl ease.

(Ni xon) Just, | mean, the fact to have -- give

the time delay for this auditor, then we would
need additional time as well on top of that. And

the clock's ticking, and statutory requirenents,

and contractual arrangements. | mean, there's
just -- it all snowballs as to what -- what that
triggers.

(Dudl ey) Yes. If | could just add to Ms. Nixon's

comment s?

I f the Conm ssion determ nes that
Li berty should not choose the auditor, well, then
it would either be the Comm ssion choosing the
auditor, which is what the Comm ssion did in the
| ast managenment audit with Liberty Consulting,
the PUC conmm ssioned that particular auditor, or

it would be the Department. But, in either case,

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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we follow the same process. We issue an RFP, we
go through that process. W do a review process
of the RFPs. And, then, we send a candi date
proposal to Governor & Council. That's a very

| ong process. You're talking six or seven

nmont hs, probably. So, we may not, if that's the
case, then nothing may be resolved until the end
of 2024 or into 2025.

So, it's a very daunting process. |If,
you know, if the Department were to agree to any
audit process, it would have to contain all of
the elements that | mentioned earlier.

So, | think, and this is just nmy follow-up, |

t hi nk what the Department is suggesting is that

t he next opportunity for the Conpany is to use a
2024 test year, to use 2024 to get the books and
records clean, so that, in early 2025, the
Conpany could make a rate case filing that the
Depart ment could be confortable with?

(Dudl ey) | could say that that's a possibility,
but I can't say that with any certainty.

Because, again, we still don't know the extent of
the errors, and whether or not those errors are

going to continue into 2024.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000133




N

& w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

134
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon| Trotti er| Dudl ey| Moran| Noonan]

Q

Yes. | guess |I'm just asking for the
Department's position or opinion on the process
that it would recommend to the Conpany, as
opposed to -- | understand that there's no
certainty in the -- in any proposal. But | think
what | heard you say is a 2023 test year is not
an option, fromthe Department's point of view
Therefore, using 2024, to clean everything up,
woul d be the best option, so the Conpany could
have a rate case filing as soon as it coul d?
(Dudl ey) Yes. That would be a possibility, M.
Chai rman. And our position all along has been
that Liberty should sinply withdraw this rate
case and start over.

And, sadly, | have one nore foll owup. And
that's the -- | believe the Department’'s position
woul d be that the rate case expenses shoul d be

wi t hdrawn, and that the tenporary rates that were
approved should be returned to ratepayers?
(Dudley) If the Motion is approved, yes.

Okay. MWhich is --

(Ni xon) Can | clarify? By saying "w thdrawn",
meani ng that the ratepayers aren't paying the

consul tant expenses, is what you meant by that

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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statenment ?

Q Yes. If the Comm ssion grants the Motion to
Dism ss, | believe the Departnment's position is
that there should be no rate case expenses the
rat epayers are paying for with respect to the
current filing?

A (Ni xon) Well, yes. Ratepayers should not pay.

There are still rate case expenses that our

consul tants and other consultants need to be

paid. So, our position is sharehol ders should
pay for that.

Yes, | wunderstand.

(Ni xon) Okay. Okay.

And, then --

(Ni xon) Just wanted to clarify.

o » O » O

Thank you. And, then, with respect to tenporary
rates that were granted, and | m ght be
m sremenbering the number, perhaps Attorney
Dexter could correct me, | think it was something
like $5 m I lion.

MR. DEXTER: That's correct.
BY CHAI RMAN GOLDNER:
Q That's correct. Do you -- the Department's

position on that would also be that that needs to

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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be reversed out. And that, to the extent that
any money has been collected so far, that that
woul d need to be returned to ratepayers. 1s that
t he Department's position?
(Dudl ey) Yes. If the Motion to Dismss is
approved, the rate case comes to an end.
Right. Right. And then that nopney -- | just
want to verify, your position is, any noney
coll ected woul d need to be returned to
rat epayers, correct?
(Ni xon) Yes.
(Dudl ey) Yes, it would, because it would be as if
the rate case was never filed.
CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Right. Right. |
just wanted to validate that before you were --
W TNESS DUDLEY: Correct.
CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: -- off the stand.
Ckay. Thank you.
Do my fell ow Conm ssioners have any
follow-up questions, before we turn to redirect?
CMSR. CHATTOPADHYAY: No.
CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Thank you.
Attorney Dexter.

MR. DEXTER: Thank you.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q

> O » O » O

So, Ms. Moran, earlier today you nade a
statement, and |'m going to try to paraphrase it.
It had to do with what your understandi ng was of
Li berty's external auditors, and why they were of
the opinion that the 2022 books should not be
reopened and corrected for these mapping issues.
Do you renmenmber answering questions about that?
(Moran) | do.

Can you -- can you just explain what it is that
your understandi ng was the position of the
external auditor, and how you got that

I nformation?

(Moran) Well, there was certain communication
with the auditees, | can't remenber who
specifically, but --

I'm sorry, conmmunication with who?

(Moran) Wth the auditees.

Wth Liberty or --

(Moran) Liberty.

Li berty, okay.

(Moran) 1 can't remenmber who specifically. But,

when | asked if the external auditors were aware

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000137




N

& w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

138
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Ni xon| Trotti er| Dudl ey| Moran| Noonan]

that the FERC Form 1 was wrong, basically, it
didn't tie to the books of the Conpany, they said
"Well, the natural accounts roll up to the
Corporate level, and that's what they were
focused on."

So, they weren't going to reopen the
Cor porate books to fix at the regulatory I|evel
the filing that the Conpany made with the FERC
Form 1.
Okay. And just to be clear, that's not your
opinion, that's information you heard from
Li berty, during the course of the audit?
(Moran) Correct.
OCkay. You also got some questions about tine,
and how |l ong an audit takes. And | think you

said just recently that, you know, "at sone
point, it has to come to an end."” Did the amount
of time that you and your tinme spent on the
mappi ng i ssue detract from an analysis that you
woul d typically do in an audit concerning the
underlying costs that a company incurs?

(Moran) It did take much | onger to verify that

accounts reflected on the FERC Form 1 and in the

filing itself did not agree with the SAP year-end

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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account nunmbers. That's correct.

But nmy understanding is, as part of a typical
audit, you would go beyond just this checking of
the reports versus the rate case expense, you
woul d actually analyze the underlying costs that
are contained in the accounts, once they ended up
in the right place, right? |Is that true?

(Moran) That's true. And we were able to do sone
of that. You know, we didn't spend five nonths
just trying to verify SAP to the FERC to the Rate
Filing. W were able to get into some of the
detailed analysis that we typically do, but not
to the extent that we would have had they all

mat ched.

Thank you. And the panel was asked a question
about whether or not the Department is concerned
about the financial stability of Liberty. And,
M. Dudl ey, you answered the questions.

Is it your understandi ng that al
utilities, including Liberty, file forns that are
called "F-1", not to be confused with the "FERC
Form 1", but they're filed with the New Hampshire
PUC and the Department of Energy, they're called

an "F-1" form and those report on a conpany's

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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overall operations and earnings, and the
calculation is in the formof a return on rate
base cal cul ati on?
(Dudl ey) Yes. Those are quarterly reports, M.
Dext er .
Ckay. And, so, if the Conmm ssion or the
Depart ment of Energy wanted to monitor the
financial stability, they could | ook, there's a
report every quarter, and each quarter is |ooking
back twel ve nonths, correct?
(Dudl ey) Yes. Correct.
Ckay. And those, at least | find themin the
e-filing, those are electronically filed, is that
correct?
(Dudl ey) Yes.

MR. DEXTER: Okay. That's all the
questions | have.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Thank you.
The Department of Energy witnesses are now
excused. Thank you for your time today.

We'll now take a break for |unch
returning at 1:45.

(Lunch recess taken at 1:02 p.m, and

t he hearing reconvened at 1:48 p.m )
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CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. We'll go back
on the record.

| see that the Liberty witness panel is
on the stand. But wi thout the witness that you

wer e hoping for?

MS. RALSTON: Yes. | was just going to
confirm Ms. Preston will not be able to join us
t oday. | spoke with counsel and just |let them

know ahead of time. And, of course, if there
were specific questions that these witnesses
can't answer, we'd be happy to take a record
request. And we do apol ogi ze.

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Well, | hope
everything is okay with the witness and her
famly.

Okay. Let's nove forward. And, M.
Pat naude, if you could please swear in the
Wi t nesses.

(VWhereupon LU SA READ, PETER DAWES, and

ERIN O BRI EN were duly sworn by the

Court Reporter.)

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Thank you.
And we'll start with the Company, and direct.

MS. RALSTON: And one nore procedura

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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I ssue before we proceed. I just wanted to
confirmthe Comm ssion received the FERC Form 1
during the lunch break?

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Thank you. We
received Exhibit 9, and we'll put it in the
docket book. So, thank you for being so pronpt
with the filing.

MS. RALSTON: Yes.

LU SA READ, SWORN
PETER DAWES, SWORN
ERI N O BRI EN, SWORN
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. RALSTON
Q Ckay. So, I'll begin with you, Ms. Read. I f you
coul d please state your name, position, and

responsibilities?

A (Read) Good afternoon. M name is Luisa Read. |

am the Vice President of Transformati on,

Enterprise System and Process Strategy at

Li berty. I have a CPA Finance designation in
Canada, Ontario. | also have a Finance degree
fromthe University, in Toronto. | have been

wor king with Liberty for 25 years, in the Finance

Department in our Corporate Head Office, in
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Oakville.

| have -- four years ago,
role on the Customer First Transfor
to be the finance | ead for our Cust

Program primarily involved in all

| accepted a
mat i on Program
omer First

of the finance

processes that is included in the Customer First

Program including the design of our new Chart of

Accounts, our general |edger, accounts payabl e,

fixed assets, tinme entry, and financi al

reporting.

Q Thank you. And are you generally f

t he Departnment of Energy's Motion t
the Conmpany's Objection to that Mot

(Read) Yes.

Q And are you also generally famliar

amliar with
o Dism ss and

i on?

with the

Conmpany's rate case that is the subject of this

docket ?
(Read) Yes.

Q Ckay. M. Dawes, would you please state your
full name, position, and responsibilities?

A (Dawes) Yes. MW name is Peter Dawes. |'mthe --

whoops, sorry, it's not on. Apologize for that.

My name is Peter Dawes.

Fi nance and Adm nistration for the

I'"'mthe VP -

East Regi on of

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss]
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A

Li berty Utilities. So, that would include New
Hampshire, as well as various other states, and
the Province of New Brunswick. |'m responsible
for the financial accounting and reporting for
t he East Region of Liberty Utilities, including
the New Hampshire utilities.

|'ve been with the Conmpany for about, |
woul d say, six and a half years. But |'ve been
with utilities for the last 30 years in finance
and accounting roles.
And are you also famliar with the Departnment of
Energy's Motion to Dism ss and the Conpany's
Obj ection to that Motion?
(Dawes) Yes, | am
And are you also generally famliar with the
Conmpany's rate case filing?
(Dawes) Yes.
And you did not sponsor any testinmony in support
of that Initial Filing, is that correct?
(Dawes) | did not.
Okay. But was your -- were you or your team
I nvolved in the transition of the SAP accounting
systent?

(Dawes) Yes, both me and ny team

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Can you provide just a general overview of your
i nvol vement with that process?
(Dawes) Yes. So, less involved froma detail
standpoint, so nore so design-rel ated deci sions;
ensuring training and testing took place, and
t hat people on my team were generally avail abl e;
as well as validating any information after
cutover, to ensure that the cutover was accurate.
Okay.
(Dawes) But the bulk of the details weren't
necessarily performed by the people on nmy team
And, then, Ms. O Brien, would you please state
your full name, position, and responsibilities?
(OBrien) My name is Erin O Brien. | joined
Li berty in Septenber of 2020. | amthe
Accounting Director in the East Region, | ooking
after general accounting for the New Hampshire
conpani es.

My background, prior to joining
Li berty, is | spent 14 years at PwC, nost
recently as the Director in the Audit practice.
| have ny Bachel or of Science in Business
Adm ni stration from Stonehill College; ny

Master's in Accounting from Northeastern

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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o > O >

University. And | ama Certified Public
Account ant .

Great. And are you famliar with the Depart ment
of Energy's Motion to Dism ss and the Conpany's
Obj ection to the Mtion?

(O Brien) I am

And are you also generally famliar with the
Conpany's rate case filing?

(O Brien) Yes.

And you work with M. Dawes, correct?

(O Brien) Correct.

And, so, in that work, you were also involved in
the SAP transition, is that correct?

(O Brien) That's right.

I ncluding the training and validation out of the
transition?

(O Brien) That's right.

Back to Ms. Read for a nonment. The Conpany

i ncluded a proposed exhibit regarding the SAP
Chart of Accounts that was marked as "Exhibit 7".
Did you prepare that exhibit?

(Read) Yes, | did.

Okay. And, before |I ask you a series of

questions referring to that exhibit, | thought it

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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woul d be hel pful to define some of the ternms that
the Company will be using.

So, there's three sets of data that
we' ve been discussing today. And the first is
the Conpany's general |edger. Could you define
what the "general |edger"?
(Read) "General |ledger" is a |list of accounts
that are primarily used for financial
transactions. And the general |edger is used for
financial reporting, internal management
reporting, external reporting, regulatory
reporting.
And, then, the second dataset we've been
di scussing this morning is the FERC Form 1. And
I think what that is is self-explanatory. But
could one of the wi tnesses please just explain
briefly how the FERC Form 1 relates to that
general | edger?
(O Brien) The general |edger provides the basis
for the preparation of the FERC Form 1. W'l
get into details today around any adjustnments
that were required. But the transactions present
in the general |edger are the basis for the FERC

Form 1.

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000147




N

S w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

148
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Read| O Brien| Dawes]

And, finally, the third set of data we've been

di scussing are the Conpany's revenue requirenent
schedul es. And could you explain how those
schedul es relate to the general |edger and FERC
Form 17

(OBrien) Simlar to the FERC Form 1, the general
| edger provides the basis of the transactions

t hroughout the year in preparation of the initial
test year for the revenue requirenment.

Okay. And, so, now turning to Exhibit 7, at Page
3. Page 3 has a diagram Do the w tnesses see
that ?

(Read) Yes.

And is that diagramintended to show that the SAP
accounting systemis just one component of the
Conmpany's I T investnent that is sonmetinmes
referred to as "Customer First"?

(Read) Yes.

OCkay. And what functions does that SAP Gener al
Ledger Program serve?

(Read) The general |edger, the SAP general

| edger, is all the financial transactions
recorded from the Conpany's perspective, and all

t hat general | edger information is used and
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gathered in a way to be able to produce financi al
reports, as | nmentioned before, around managenent
reporting, external reporting, and regul atory
reporting.
And what are some of the benefits associated with
the Conmpany's conversion to the SAP general
| edger ?
(Read) Our systens, our |egacy systens that we
wer e using before were outdated, costly to
mai ntain, and not fully integrated. W had a
Great Plains system which was our financial
transaction system our ERP system We had
Cogsdal e, which was our customer information
system was a separate system that needed to
bring data and financial transactions over,
i nformation over, in order to conplete our
financial data for the Conpany.

We al so, through SAP, we now have a
i ntegrated system between customer service,
financials, and operations. W also have found
the SAP inplementation is reduci ng manual work,
especially from an accounts payabl e perspective,
there's no nmore data entry. There were a | ot of

manual transactions done in our |egacy systems to
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our interconpany billing and our allocations.
Our fixed asset subl edger is Power Plan, now is
part of Customer First, and that provides a | ot
of automation, in ternms of AFUDC cal cul ati ons,
whi ch were done offline in Excel spreadsheets,
instead of having it automated within the system
So, our SAP Custoner First inplenmentation was
bringi ng nore automati on.
Thank you. And |I'mjust going to say, you m ght
need to slow down a little for the court
reporter.
(Read) Okay.
I"mguilty of that as well. So, the Conpany has
stated that the Customer First investnments went
live in October of 2022, and that included this
SAP General Ledger Program

If we refer to Page 4 of Exhibit 7,
which is titled "General Ledger/Financial Data
Conversion Process", is this a high-Ilevel
overview of the process for inplenmenting the SAP
general | edger?
(Read) Yes.
Okay. Could you provide just a brief explanation

of that process?
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(Read) Sure. So, this just highlights four steps
that the organization or Custoner First, the
Conmpany, took in order to conplete our data
conversion of the data from our | egacy system
into our SAP system

The first thing we needed to do is we
needed to create and design an SAP Chart of
Account. That's the foundation for any system
ERP i npl ement ati on, because those -- that Chart
of Account provides the general | edger
i nformation fromthe financial transactions.

The second step we needed to do is we
needed to convert the data from our Great Pl ains
| egacy systemto SAP. So, the Great Plains Chart
of Accounts, the different segnents there needed
to be mapped to the new SAP Chart of Accounts.

The fourth step is you needed to
| oad -- sorry, the third step, third step you is
you needed to | oad the data into SAP, because
that's your starting point. That's where you
have your historical bal ances, as well as your
openi ng bal ance.

And, then, the fourth step is to

val i date, reconcile, and sign off on the data to
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ensure both systens have the appropriate data.
And, before we nove on, you've used the acronym
"ERP" a couple times. Can you just define that?
(Read) Sure. Our "Resource Enterprise Planning".
Thank you. And, then, if we turn to Pages 5
and 6 of Exhibit 7, those provide a conmparison of
the Chart of Account structure under the |egacy
Great Plains system and the SAP system 1is that
correct?
(Read) Correct.
Coul d you explain just a few of the key
di fferences between those two Chart of Accounts?
(Read) The Great Plains Chart of Accounts
structure has six segnents. Each of those
segments were inconsistently used across our
organi zati on and our conpanies, which provided a
little bit of some difficulty in making sure that
one segnment would be mapped to the new segnment.
The one i1 nportant change or difference
fromour Great Plains Chart of Account is the
| ast three segnments of our Chart of Account, our
account class, natural account, and subaccount,
those three segments added together were our --

what we called our "natural account/regul atory
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account", and that three segments determ ned our
financial reporting, so, for GAAP reporting, as
wel | as regul atory reporting.

And, if we move on to Page 7, which is titled
"Legacy to SAP Conversion Process", there have
been a | ot of references to "mappi ng" and
“conversion". Could you provide an expl anation
what i s nmeant by "mapping" and "data conversion",
as it pertains to nmoving data fromthe | egacy
systemto the SAP systenf

(Read) | was kind of trying not to make it as
conplicated as it sounds. But it is a technical
tabl e configuration that we needed to be able to
provide, to be able to say these are the accounts
comng from Great Plains, these are the segnments
t hat they now map to in SAP. Then, we need to
bring the bal ances. We did not bring over
financial -- all the financial transactions from
our | egacy system Great Plains, we brought over
our account bal ances. So, every nmonth we did a
cal cul ation of the ampunts that were in those
Chart of Accounts, in those accounts, and then
brought it over into SAP.

We have a mapping table that shows
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these are the source information, and this where
the informati on needs to land in SAP. As an
exanmpl e, the Granite State mapping table that we
had had over 1,100 rows of data. And we brought
over twelve nonths of 2021 data and ni ne nonths
of 2022 data in our opening balances for October.
And what steps did the Conpany take to verify

t hat that process happened correctly?

(Read) Every month we bring over the data, we do
a reconciliation, to make sure that the bal ances
were -- our trial balance, because it's a trial
bal ance | oad, that cones into SAP, we ensured
that it balanced. W did some spot checks to
ensure that the net income, total net incone,
tied in SAP to Great Plains. And we did some
spot checks on sone bal ance sheet accounts,
assets, as an exanple, net assets totaled, cash
bal ances were correct, or equity tied.

Can you al so explain how data has been mapped
within the SAP systemwith respect to
transactions that occurred starting in October of
2022, when the system went |ive?

(Read) Yes. And that's going to the next slide,

which is page -- Slide 8, it tal ks about the
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regul atory account assignnents.

What's inportant to highlight in SAP,
every single financial transaction in SAP is
reported to a natural account, as well as the
regul atory account. Through SAP, the regul atory
account derivation is done through custom mappi ng
tables that are created in SAP. When a financi al
transaction is reported, SAP fetches the
regul atory body, because Liberty has not just
FERC El ectric, Granite State is one of our
utilities, we have utilities throughout the U S.
t hat have different regul atory bodies or
jurisdictions, |ike NARUC Water and Sewer, as
wel | as FERC Gas.

So, the account assignment in SAP, the
regul atory body is derived based on the conpany
code and the profit center, to determ ne, as an
exanpl e, you nust use FERC Electric as your
regul atory accounts. Through that, it then goes
to three different mappi ng tables that are
created in SAP, depending on your account
classification. So, for exanple, balance sheet
and revenue accounts, we have a direct mapping

table in SAP, which is a one-to-one natural
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account to regqulatory account. The natural
account will then need to go to the regul atory
body to determ ne which regulatory accounts we
need to use.

One thing | would like to mention about
the regul atory accounts that are created in SAP,
we | ooked at the FERC Uniform System of Accounts
to determ ne conpl eteness, and determ ned all the
accounts that needed to be set up in SAP in order
to do the regulatory reporting.

And, so, is that part of your verification for
ensuring that that process was set up correctly?
(Read) Yes.

OCkay. And how did the Conpany validate that

t hi ngs were working correctly?

(Read) We, through our testing process, we had
some test cases and scenari os where we recorded
transactions through SAP, and we determ ned the
out put, to make sure that the right --
appropriate regul atory account would be derived
based on the transaction. So, the different
transaction types, based on the natural account,
to determ ne the appropriate regul atory account

is then vali dat ed.
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If we turn to Page 10 of Exhibit 7, that

di scusses issues with the mappi ng you just

descri bed to us, are you famliar with the
adjustments that were made prior to closing the
2022 books?

(Read) Yes.

And are you also famliar with the adjustments
that were made followi ng closing of the 2022
books?

(Read) At a very high level, yes.

And what is the process to correct those? Or, |
guess how were those adjustnments identified?
(Read) So, first of all, I think it's inmportant
to understand, some of the mapping that has been
tal ked about today is related to -- sone of it
was related to data conversion, sone of the
openi ng bal ances from our | egacy system to our
SAP system did not get mapped to the appropriate
account. One exanple, | think it's on the |i st
of adjustments that were done, was related to an
I nterconpany transaction. That data got mapped
incorrectly to a asset interconpany account,
instead of it being in a liability account.

Some of the other transactions or
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> O >» O

adj ustnments that came through were related to
transactional data that happened once we were
live in SAP. So, as an exanple, you're starting
to create new data in SAP, because you're using
the system One good exanple is we keep talking
about "WBSs", which is called a "Wrk Breakdown
Structure". That's simlarly -- you can kind of
think of it as a "project". Proj ects get
created, and you need to ensure, if they're
capital, they need to settle to the bal ance
sheet; if they're operation and mai ntenance
projects, they need to sit on the expense side on
the P&L.

We al so create these projects to settle
and do interconpany allocations between our
di fferent conpani es, our service conpany and our
Cor porate service conpany, to charge costs to our
utilities.
The --
(Read) Those -- sorry.
No, go on.
(Read) If those are not set up correctly, it wl
not derive the correct regulatory account. As |

menti oned before, every single financial
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transaction in SAP is recorded to a natural
account and a regul atory account. If incorrectly
set up, the project incorrectly set up with the
wrong settlement profile, it would cause the
regul atory account to be the regulatory clearing
account, which, as people have been speaking to,
999", the "999 regulatory account". I f that
process of creating those new structures or
projects in SAP are incorrect, it could cause a
i ncorrect regulatory mapping.

As an exanple of a new WBS, | believe is when a
storm event occurs, right?

(Read) Correct.

So, that's an exanple of something that would be
new after the "go live", correct?

(Read) Correct.

Okay. The 2022 books were not reopened to
reflect adjustnents identified after they were
closed, is that correct?

(Read) Correct.

And coul d you explain why the Conpany did not
reopen the 2022 books?

(Read) | guess it depends on tim ng of when

certain adjustnments are captured or identified,
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and how much time has passed since closing the
books. And we close the books, it's best
practice to close your financial |edger and stop
transactions going into a past period. It's just
best practice to close, make sure you close and
you have that governance on cl osing. But a
deci si on was made not to open them

And we heard this morning that the Conpany
acknowl edged, at the | ast day of hearings, on
January 4th, that there is one additional issue
that will require adjustnents to the revenue
requi rement in this proceeding.

Ms. Read, based on your understanding,
do you expect there will be any additional
adjustnents related to SAP conversion, with
respect to the 2022 books?

(Read) Not that |I'm aware of. But | would defer
to M. Dawes and Ms. O Brien

Ckay. And | have a few questions for them now.
So, M. Dawes, did your teamreview the books and
records prior to filing this case?

(Dawes) Yes, can you be more specific?

Did your team perform a review of the general

| edger before the case was fil ed?
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(Dawes) Yes. So, if we go back to the year-end
books and records we needed to prepare the FERC
Form1l, --
Uh- huh.
(Dawes) -- so, it was at the time of the FERC
Form 1 preparation that we determ ned that we
needed to make some adjustnents to the regul atory
accounts, the FERC accounts. So, |'d say, |
mean, that was when the thorough review was
taki ng around the regul atory accounts. So, those
adj udgnents were made in the FERC Form 1.
But, al so, subsequent to closing the
books for 2022, we noted that there were sonme
adj ustments that needed to be made. | think
there were four or five that we have brought
forward in this case. But those were essentially
found after the Corporate book closing process
was conpl et ed. I think Luisa had mentioned that.
So, typically, it's a lengthy process
to close your books, get all your financial
statements prepared, all of your notes to your
financials. You really can't book any new
adj ustnments really beyond maybe three or four

weeks after the end of the year. It just doesn't
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>

work in the process.

So, those adjustments we recogni zed
really pertained to 2022 activity. So, we talked
about "should we put themin the FERC Form 1?" |
think those were even after the Corporate books
were cl osed and the audit of the FERC Form 1 was
conpleted, that it didn't make sense to try to
push those into the FERC Form 1.

But we did realize that, since they
were part of the 2022 results, they were a
reduction in expenses, it made sense to
I ncorporate those into the filing.

And this morning we heard a | ot of reference to
the "Audit Report". Did you participate in, or
did you or your team in responding to questions
fromthe Audit Division?

(Dawes) Yes.

And did you review the resulting Audit Report?
(Dawes) Yes, | did.

And the Audit Report resulted in 28 Audit |ssues,
I's that your understandi ng?

(Dawes) Yes.

And is an audit report with 28 issues indicative

of unreliable books and records, in your opinion?
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(Dawes) Yes, | would say, so, Audit Issue 1 was
our adjustnents that we identified. You know,
Ms. Moran mentioned that they were -- "some were
Staff's and some were ours”, they were all our
adj ustnments. So, those were the ones we nmade for
the FERC Form 1 filing.

The others, | think there was an
assorted number of them sone were related to
SAP, many were not. | think the net inpact on
t he revenue requirement com ng out of those
adjustments | believe was $250, 000 or so.

So, there may have been a nunber of
adjustnments in the Audit Report, or audit issues,
but certainly weren't significant to the overall
revenue requirement or the 2022 financial results
of Granite State.

And, as part of Audit Issue 1 in the Audit
Report, the Audit Staff concluded that it could
not determ ne whether the adjustments were
accurate or if the adjustnents identified were
all of the adjustnments that should have been
done. So, as you just stated, Audit Issue 1
related to adjustments identified by the Conpany,

and that were made prior to filing of this case,
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correct?

(Dawes) Correct. They were made prior to filing

the FERC Form 1, which then becane the basis for

what was included in the case.

But, because those adjustnments were nmade after

the closing of the 2022 books, they were made

bet ween the closing and the FERC Form 1? Am |

correct, that those would not be reflected on the

2022 books?

(Dawes) That is correct.

We've heard a | ot of comments about the vol ume of

adj ustnments that have to be nmade. Do you expect

that the number of adjustments will decrease, as

t he Conmpany continues to gain famliarity and

experience with SAP?

(Dawes) Oh, nost definitely. W' ve certainly

| earned an awful lot. We made a -- we made a

number of corrections, obviously, as a result of

this case, and what we found prior to filing the

FERC Form 1. We've corrected the mapping issues.
And | would say, for the end of 2023,

we don't anticipate any nore adjustments from

mappi ng i ssues, particularly associated with

2022. And the 2023 final books and records
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CONTI

should match the FERC Form 1.

So, | would envision that there -- |
mean, there's always going to be issues in any
year. But the issues we're tal king about in this
case, | don't anticipate going forward. | nean,
someone could always set up a WBS incorrectly
that settles to the wrong regul atory account, and
we m ght have to make a correction at a | ater
dat e. But that's no different than our | egacy
system There's al so the opportunity for
somet hing |like that to happen.

A nunmber of adjustments related to 2022 were not
reflected in the 2022 books, because they had
been cl osed. I s that unusual, in your opinion,
to identify and make adjudgnents after the fiscal
year accounting has cl osed?
(Dawes) It's not unconmon. Il mean, --
[Court reporter interruption regarding
use of the m crophone. ]
NUED BY THE W TNESS:
(Dawes) Sorry. It's not unconmmon. | don't know
if 1'"d call it "standard practice". But, | mean,
any time you close the books, and you've got a

relatively short period to close everything off,
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identify any adjustnments that you can put into

the final books. Occasionally, there are things
you do find after that. And, to the extent they
I npact the bal ance sheet accounts, you woul d want

to make those adjustments, if at all possible.

BY MS. RALSTON:

Q

Q

And, in your opinion, excuse me, with these

adj ustnents, and the explanations the Conpany has
provided, that allow for tracing fromthe 2022
general | edger, to the FERC Form 1, to the
revenue requirenment schedul es, has the Conpany

provided reliable data in this proceeding?

(Dawes) From what | understand, yes. I mean,
they're not part of the actual filings
thensel ves. But, from what | understand, we have

provi ded sort of the path fromthe books and
records, through the FERC Form 1, and the
additional adjustnents. And | think we made an
update filing in Novenmber that provided
information on all of the updates that we made.

| think the only final item would be
t he additional adjustnments that we've been
tal ki ng about this norning.

Great. And, Ms. O Brien, | believe that you
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wor ked directly with the Audit Division during
their investigation. What steps did your team
take to assist with that review?

(O Brien) In May of 2023, recognizing that we had
the new systemin place, we had a meeting with
Audit Staff to discuss the new Chart of Accounts,
the differences from how the account numberi ng,
our conpany nunbers changed, you know, just and
taking them back and wal ki ng t hrough what our new
conmpany numbers were and what the accounts woul d
| ook like, so the Audit Staff would be aware of
those differences.

Throughout the audit, we responded to
audit requests as they arose, and worked to
provi de expl anations to those questions.

And, during the first day of hearings on

January 4th, we heard from counsel for Departnment
of Energy that there were "hundreds of

adj ustments made to the Conmpany's gener al

| edger .

If I refer you to Exhibit 6, which is
the Conmpany's Novenber revenue requirenent
update, specifically the file that's | abel ed

"Part 2", and there's a tab that we di scussed
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this morning that's called "TrackRRUpdates", is
the purpose of that tab to show the updates made
to the revenue requirenent and provide the reason
for the update?
(O Brien) Yes, and cross reference as well.
And Row 7 says, under the "Notes", that the
adj ustnents are "As filed". Does that mean that
t hose adjustnents were included in the Conpany's
filing submtted in May?
(O Brien) Yes.
And are those adjustments the same adj ustnments
identified in Audit Report Audit Issue 17
(O Brien) Yes.
And those issues were identified by the Conpany,
correct?
(O Brien) That's correct.
And they were identified before the filing of
this docket, just to be clear?
(O Brien) That's correct.

MS. RALSTON: Okay. That's all | have.
Thank you.

CHAlI RMAN GOLDNER: Thank you. We'|
nmove now to DOE cross, and Attorney Dexter.

VMR. DEXTER: Good afternoon.
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CROSS- EXAM NATI ON

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q

| believe I heard testinony fromthe panel that
you had reviewed the Audit Report that was issued
by the Departnment of Energy in October 2023, is
that right?

(O Brien) Yes.

(Dawes) Yes.

And do you dispute the results or the findings of
that Audit Report, other than the Conpany
comments that are noted therein?

(O Brien) No.

| wanted to go over the chronology of the filing

of the FERC Form 1 and the filing of the rate

case for a mnute. And just -- you can just help
me see if | have this right.
So, | have a letter here from Liberty

dated April 11th, to Chairman Gol dner, indicating
that Liberty had requested an extension of tinme
for filing its FERC Form 1 until May 31st, 2023.
Does that sound right to you?

(O Brien) It does.

Okay. And, then, Liberty filed its FERC

Form1 -- well, I"'msorry, on April 28th, Liberty
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A

made a rate filing, correct?

(O Brien) Yes.

In this docket?

(O Brien) Yes.

April 28th, okay. And, on April -- on May 2nd,
that Rate Filing was rejected by the Comm ssion,
because it referenced a FERC Form 1 that was not
yet on file. I s that your understanding?

(O Brien) That's nmy understanding, yes.

Okay. And, then, subsequently, on May 5th, the
Conmpany filed its FERC Form 1 with the Conm ssion
and the Departnment, is that right?

(O Brien) That's right.

And that's the same date that you filed the case,
which is the one that we've been working on in
this docket?

(O Brien) Yes.

Ckay. And, then, on May 19th, the Conpany
refiled it's FERC Form 1, is that right?

(O Brien) That's right.

And can you explain why there was a refiling of
the FERC Form 1 on May 19th, and how it differed
fromthe one that was filed on May 5th?

(O Brien) The FERC Form 1 for Granite State

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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El ectric requires an i ndependent audit review.
The timng of the preparation of the FERC Form 1
did not allow for that to be conpleted prior to
the May 5th filing. As a result, the audit --
the external auditors were provided that FERC
Form 1 for audit. My understanding is that the
FERC conpliance rules allow for the independent
audit report to be filed within a certain period
of time after the initial filing of the FERC
Form 1. So, it was resubmtted in m d-May of
2023, with the audit report included.

OCkay. And did any of the balances in the
accounts change between the May 5th filing and
the May 19th filing, or was it nore to include
statements from the external auditors?

(O Brien) It was more to include the statenments
fromthe external auditors. | would need to go
back and conpare one-for-one. But there were

no -- certainly no significant changes.

Ckay. And, so, | have one page of the FERC

Form 1l in front of ne. And there's a statenment

that's made by Peter Dawes. |I'Ill just read it
into the record. But, if you want to follow
al ong, follow along. |'m | ooking at the FERC
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Form 1l from May 19th. And |I'm | ooking at Page 6

of 163. And it's called "Annual Corporate

Officer Certification. And it says "The

under si gned officer certifies that | have

exam ned this report, and to the best of ny

knowl edge, information and belief, all statenents

of fact contained in this report are correct

statements of the business affairs of the

respondent, and the financial statenents and

ot her financial information contained in this

report conformin all material respects to the

Uni form System of Accounts.” And there's an

el ectronic signature of "Peter Dawes, May 18th".
So, that's you, M. Dawes, correct?

(Dawes) Correct.

And are you -- so, you're famliar with that

statenment ?

(Dawes) Oh, yes.

And is that statenment accurate, as you sit here

t oday?

(Dawes) So, when the FERC Form 1 -- excuse ne.

As of the time of the filing, to ny

under st andi ng, that was an accurate depiction of

t he FERC Form 1. So, that statement was correct.
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I mean, | would say today, it was
materially correct. | mean, | would be
confortabl e maki ng that sanme statenment. | know

we found certain adjustments, but nothing would
be material to make me alter what | put in for a
certification on that FERC Form 1.

OCkay. And this statenment in this FERC Form 1 was
prepared, | think as you just indicated, after
the numerous adjustments that were discussed in
Audit Issue 1, this canme after that, correct?
(Dawes) The adjustments in Audit Issue 1 were
part of the FERC Form 1. So, yes. | don't know
if I would characterize it as "numerous". But
the adjustnments, yes, were part of that.

So, in the Audit Report, | -- 1 didn't count them
l'i ne-by-line, but I came up with about 200.

Woul d you agree with that number, that it was in
the area of 200 adjustnments that were made to the

books, to take you fromthe books to the FERC

Form 17

(Dawes) | think I'"Il let Ms. O Brien answer that
one.

Sure.

(O Brien) | would not agree with that
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characterization. The adjustnments that were
recorded were part of one analysis that was
performed over the books and records. And the
items listed in Audit Issue 1 show, in nost
cases, both the debit and credit side of the
adj ustment that was reported, therefore are
captured at least twice, in some cases nore, as
detailed line itenms total an amount already

i ncluded in the report.

Okay. So, you wouldn't consider those

“numer ous" ?

(O Brien) | would not consider there to be over

200 adj ustnments.

Ckay.

(O Brien) | believe it impacted sixteen account
l'i nes.

Okay. Wuld you say that -- and | asked this

question of Ms. Moran earlier this nmorning, and
said I'd come back to you guys with it. Would
you consider the FERC Form 1l that was filed and
certified to be nmore accurate than the books that
were cl osed, the internal books that were closed
at the end of the year? |In other words, were

they improved by these adjustnments that were
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made?

(O Brien) Absolutely.

Okay. And that's what allowed M. Dawes to sign
the statement that "the reports are correct" --
"correct statement of the business affairs, and
the financial statements and other information
contained in this report, conformin all materi al
respects to the Uniform System of Accounts"?
Those adjustnments that you made gave credence to
you being able to make that certification, I
guess i s what |'m asking?

(Dawes) Yes.

Ckay. Now, in the rate case that was filed on
May 5th, there's an attestation also filed by M.
Dawes. And it appears at 1-182 in the filing,
which is part of the Conpany's filing

requi rements.

And | have paper copies, if it's hard
to find. But it's 1-182 in the Company's filing
requi rements.

Are you famliar with that attestation,
M . Dawes?

(Dawes) | do not have it in front of me. But I

recall signing that attestation.
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MR. DEXTER: Okay. Well, | was going
to read fromit. But, Attorney Ralston, | have
paper copies, if you want to provide it to the
wi t ness.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Attorney Dexter, can
you reiterate what part of the filing you're
| ooki ng at?

MR. DEXTER: Yes.

CMSR. SIMPSON: |If you have a tab from
t he docket, that would be hel pful. Thank you.

[Atty. Ral ston handi ng document to

Wt ness Dawes. ]

MR. DEXTER: So, it's Tab 5. It's
Tab 5, and -- sorry, Tab 11, in the May 5th
filing, it's called "Filing Requirements”. And,
if you go into that, they're all designated with

a , and then it's followed by -- the actual
page nunber is "1-182".
CMSR. SI MPSON: Thank you.
BY MR. DEXTER:
Q And it's just called "Attestation". | think it
actually intends to cover two certificates that

are required by the rules. But, M. Dawes, maybe

you could just explain what this attestation
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does?

(Dawes) Okay. So, there are certainly two parts
toit. And I'll maybe skip over the second part,
because | think you' re focused more on the first
one.

So, it's getting at the information
filed in support of the rate case is supported by
t he books and records of the Conpany. And, in
signing the attestation, certainly, | attested to
the FERC Form 1, since | had to certify that.

And | was aware that we made ot her adjustnments
that | think |I had tal ked about a little earlier,
that didn't get into the FERC Form 1, but were
part of the actual filing. So, | felt
confortable attesting to what was filed in the
rate case was accurate as far as its relation to

the FERC Form 1, and those other adjustnents that

we made.
OCkay. Well, let ne just -- let me just go to the
specific docunent. And it says "I affirm..the

cost and revenue statenents and supporting data
subm tted, which purport to reflect the books and
records of Liberty Utilities...do in fact set

forth the results shown by such books and
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records."” So, that's an accurate statenment, as
you sit here today, correct?

(Dawes) Yes. And "books and records", from ny
standpoint in attesting to this, was what was
part of the FERC Form 1. Not necessarily what
was in the trial balance at the end of 2022,

whi ch we know was different than what was in the
FERC Form 1.

And, then, it goes on to say that "all the
di fferences between the books and the test year
data. .. have been expressly noted.” Could you
explain to me where the difference is between the
Conpany's books and records and the rate case
i nformation was "expressly noted"?
(Dawes) So, as | mentioned earlier, | was going
from the standpoint of the FERC Form 1 being
really the books and records, not the trial
bal ance. So, in nmy view, there were no
di fferences.

But | certainly appreciate that we
didn't -- we didn't put in those additional
adjustments that weren't part of FERC Form 1.

So, | would agree that those could have been

cal l ed out.
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Q

OCkay. Well, let ne -- so, let me break this down
t hen.

So, if we consider that "books and
records” means the "FERC Form 1", could you
explain where the difference is between the FERC
Form 1 and the rate case statenent, the rate case
i nformation, where was that detailed in the rate
case?

(Dawes) Where was what detailed? |'msorry.

The difference between the FERC -- any

di fferences between the FERC Form 1 and the rate
case information, the revenue requirements, the
cost of service schedules, that were filed in the
case?

(Dawes) So, | think it would be the -- so, |
think we had four or five adjustnments that we --
' m not sure when those were actually brought

forward in the case, probably a little |ater.

And |'m not sure, | would have to speak with
Regul atory, but I'mnot sure if those were
detailed in the filing as being the difference

bet ween the books and records or FERC Form 1, and
what was in the filing.

Anybody el se on the panel want to -- can point to
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that in the filing?

(OBrien) | don't believe it was in the Initia
Filing.

Okay. Now, if we take a different definition of
"books and records”, and include that to mean the
"general |edger", where were the differences

bet ween the general |edger and the information
that was submtted in the rate case? Where are
those expressly noted in the Rate Filing?
(Dawes) So, that's nmore of a hypothetical
question, because | think | already answered that
my basis was "the FERC Form 1 is the books and
records.” So, | mean, they wouldn't be there,
usi ng what you're getting at in your question,

t hey wouldn't have been part of the filing.
Okay. So, any differences between the general

| edger and the rate case sheets were not
expressly noted?

(Dawes) Correct.

Ckay.

(Dawes) As far as | know.

Okay. Now, the differences between the general

| edger and the rate case would include the

various adjustments we've been tal king about in
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Audit |ssue 1, correct? Those were differences
bet ween the general |edger and the rate case?
(Dawes) Correct.

Okay. And the differences between the FERC
Form 1 and the rate case, where have those been
captured in the course of the rate case, as it's
unf ol ded?

(Dawes) Erin, is that something you could answer?
(O Brien) It's been captured through various data
requests, including the exhibit you presented at
t he January 4th hearing, as well as certain tech
session requests, | believe, including 2-20.

Ckay. So, the first part of your answer was the
data request that | provided at the other -- at

t he January 4th hearing, which has been marked as
"Exhibit 4". So, that was -- that was answered
in October. So, well after the rate case was
filed, correct?

(O Brien) That was provided in October, correct.

| didn't hear that.

(O Brien) I"msorry. That was provided in

Oct ober, correct.

In October. And these issues that were detailed

in Exhibit 4, on Page 2 of Exhibit 4, they
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actually appeared in the Audit Report, which was

i ssued in October. So, that would give us sone

I ndi cati on of when they were detailed. But the

cause you to believe otherw se?

(O Brien) Not that |I'm aware of.

that you've drawn in your answer, in

point is, it was all done after the filing, after
the May 5th filing?
(O Brien) | believe so, yes.

Q Yes. Well, is there any indication that would

Q Okay. M. Dawes, what's behind the distinction

characterizing the "books and records"” as meani ng

the "FERC Form 1"? What would | ead you to make

t hat distinction?

(Dawes) So, | would say, typically, it's the FERC
Form 1 and its bal ances are the starting point

for a rate filing. So, in my experience, which

i ncludes 20 plus years being a revenue

requi rement witness, it always starts with the
FERC Form 1.

Q Okay. So, |'ve got the testimny here of Jardin
and Dane fromthis rate case. | read this on
January 4th, I'll read it again.

MR. DEXTER: And |I'm on Page I1-276, if
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the Comm ssion wants to follow al ong.

CMSR. SIMPSON: The testinmony of?

MR. DEXTER: It's the Testinmony of K
Jardin and D. Dane.

CMSR. SI MPSON: Tab 117

MR. DEXTER: Yes. That would be Tab 11

agai n.

CMSR. SIMPSON: And |I'm sorry, the page
number ?

MR. DEXTER: So, they're all Ils in
this section. So, it's "Il-276".

CMSR. SI MPSON: Thank you for that.

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q

And the question that was asked in the written
question was: "What approach did you use to
determ ne the revenue requirement and the revenue
defici enci es?"

And the answer was: "The Conpany began
with the unadjusted Test Year financial results
and made the adjustnments described below to
cal cul ate pro forma Test Year and Rate Year
revenue requirenments and revenue deficiencies.”

Sorry to keep reading, but | think it's

the fastest way to do it.
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Q

And, then, the new paragraph says:
"Test Year". "Our analysis began with the
Conmpany's financial results in the Test Year
(i.e., the twelve months endi ng December 31st,
2022)."

So, M. Dawes, is it your understanding
t hat, when the w tnesses said that, the
“financial results", they weren't referring to
t he books and records of the Conpany, they were
referring to the FERC Form 1?
(Dawes) I'mnot famliar with that data response
or the context with how the question arose.
Ckay. Well, I'm not --
(Dawes) |I'm not sure -- |'m not sure what they
wer e thinking when they were answering that.
Okay. Well, it's not a data response. |It's the
Conmpany's testimny, just to --
(Dawes) Okay. l'"'mnot famliar with that either.
Ckay. So, you said earlier, in your "20 years of
doing rate cases, the starting point is the FERC
Form 1, not the Conpany's general |edger."” Did I
understand that right?
(Dawes) You did.

Okay. All right. But you don't know what the
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Wit nesses were referring to when they said "we
started with the financial results"?

(Dawes) 1'm assum ng they meant the "FERC

Form 1". | mean, that was the basis of -- the
starting point for the revenue requirenment was

t he FERC Form 1.

And | think I heard testimny earlier on fromthe
panel that "everything starts with the general

| edger, and that feeds into the FERC Form 1".
You agree with that, correct?

(Dawes) Oh, yes. Correct.

Ckay. And, if you're going to |ook at the
underlying transactions in a test year, you can't
| ook at the FERC Form 1, because that just gives
you t he bal ances, correct?

(Dawes) Correct.

And, if you want to know what makes up those

bal ances, you have to go to the general | edger
and see what the various financial transactions
are, correct?

(Dawes) Yes.

All right. So, this testimny goes on to say:
"From those results, we renoved flow-through

items", and it's "(purchased power and
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transm ssion wheeling...), and nmade pro forma

adj ustnments for known and measur abl e adj ust ments.
The resulting Test Year pro forma net operating

i ncome reflects normalized revenues at current
rates and expenses, and net operating income for
rat emaki ng purposes.”

It doesn't say anything in here about
the adjustments that were made to take us from
t he general |edger to the FERC Form 1, does it?

MS. RALSTON: M. Dawes is not the
wi tness for this testinony. And it wasn't marked
as an exhibit. So, | know he's doing his best,
but this probably beyond his expertise area.

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: Attorney Dexter.

MR. DEXTER: Well, I'll take an answer
from anyone on the panel, or counsel, or anybody
in the audi ence that knows. It's a fairly sinple
gquesti on.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Does anyone on the
wi t ness panel know the answer to Attorney
Dexter's question?

W TNESS DAWES: Do you m nd asking it
one more time please?

BY MR. DEXTER:
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Yes. | guess what |'m saying is, this testinony,
Page 276, where it tal ks about the devel opnent of
the Test Year, makes no nention of the
adjustments that were made to go fromthe
Conmpany's books and records, to the -- to the
Test Year results that were presented -- |I'm
sorry, to the revenue requirement results that
were presented in the rate case. Wuld you agree
with that, that it's not mentioned in this

testi mony here?

MS. RALSTON: | think M. Dawes could
agree on what the page says. But, if we're going
to get into how this testinony was devel oped, |
mean, he's not the right witness. And there was
an opportunity to mark this as an exhibit, and
t he Department of Energy did not do that.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Attorney Dexter.

MR. DEXTER: Well, I'm not sure what
the objection is. I think counsel is objecting
to a question | haven't asked question yet, which
was going to be nmy next question.

But | just sinmply asked "does this
testimony tal k about the adjustnments that were

made, to go fromthe books to the rate case
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filing?"

And, if nobody at Liberty can answer
t hat question, | guess that's what we're |eft
with then.

MS. RALSTON: Well, | agree. W can --
we can agree to what the page says. | just
wanted to point out that this is not the revenue
requi rements witness.

So, yes. The page does not reference
the FERC Form 1. | don't know what el se we can
say on that.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Attorney Dexter, how
woul d you like to proceed?

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q | guess | would like to ask the panel of
wi t nesses, is there anywhere in the rate case
that was filed that details the differences
bet ween the general |edger and the FERC Form 1
that were the issues that were highlighted in
Audit |ssue Number 17

If the panel can answer that, then --

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: And the Comm ssion
woul d al so be interested in that answer. So, --

BY THE W TNESS:
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(O Brien) So, | don't believe there is anywhere
where we have outlined the bridge in our rate
case filing from our SAP general |edger to the
FERC Form 1 and the revenue requirement. We took
t he books and records to neet the FERC Form 1,
and have worked through the FERC Form 1 to the

revenue requirenment.

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q

Okay. So, | want to go to Exhibit Number 5,
whi ch is Record Request Number 1, Record Response
Number 1 for a mnute. This exhibit indicates
that the respondents are "Erin O Brien" and
"Peter Dawes", is that right?
(Dawes) | don't have that in front of nme.
CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Exhi bit 5, Attorney
Dexter? Wbuld counsel for Liberty be able to
approach the witness and provide Exhibit 5 for
them pl ease?
MS. RALSTON: Yes.
[Atty. Sheehan providing his laptop to
the wi tness panel for docunent view. ]
W TNESS DAWES: | apol ogize. | know
t hat counsel sent me the email that had the

exhibits, but |I can't get into ny email. So, it
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does me no good. Sorry for that.

CHAI RMAN GOL DNER: No problem

BY THE W TNESS:

A

A

(O Brien) Yes. W are the respondents.

(Dawes) Yes.

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q

Q

OCkay. So, | would Ilike to go to Issue Number 5,
which is on Page 2 of Exhibit 5. And, in the far
ri ght-hand corner, there's a description -- well,
first of all, why don't | ask you, what is
Exhibit 5 intending to show?

(O Brien) W were asked to provide the top ten
adj ustnments, and that is what this is intending
to show.

Okay. Could you just be nore specific what you
mean by "adjustnments"?

(O Brien) So, these are the top ten | argest

adj ustnments that were required to the regul atory
accounts, fromthe general |edger to the revenue
requi rement filing.

Okay. To get you fromthe general |edger to the
revenue requirements filing?

(O Brien) Yes.

Okay.
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Q

(O Brien) The regul atory account general | edger.
Ckay. So, Item Nunber 5 and Itenms Nunber 8, 9
and 10, are all dated "Decenber 2023", would you
agree?

(O Brien) Yes.

OCkay. And Item Nunber 5 says that, essentially,
and if I"'mmsstating this, you can tell me, that
there was $527,000 that should have been recorded
to Account 593, FERC Account 593, but was
actually recording in Account 920. 1Is that
right?

(O Brien) That's right.

OCkay. Mhat's "920"? That's an Adm nistrative &
General expense account, isn't it?

(O Brien) Yes.

What's "Account 593"7?

(Dawes) It's certainly an Operation & Maintenance
account. It's not an Adm nistrative & General.
But I'm not sure specifically what "593" is,

wi t hout | ooking at the FERC Chart of Accounts.
Sure. Vhich, feel free to, but I'll accept that
it's an Operation & Maintenance expense account.
(Dawes) Yes. It is.

Okay. And, so, at the bottom of the expl anation,
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Q

it says that "The inpact on the revenue
requi rement has not been cal culated, but it wl
be driven by the difference in the escal ation
factors applied to FERC 920 versus FERC 593."
Can you expl ain what that nmeans?
(O Brien) We identified a nunmber of adjustnments
i n Decenber 2023, as we've discussed. | would
i ke to mention that the net inpact of those is
only $167,000. So, we have taken the absolute
val ue of the differences in preparing this top
ten analysis for the Conm ssion

The intent of the statenment here is to
identify that this does not mean there is a
$527, 000 i mpact on the revenue requirenent. It
will need to be run through the calculation for
that to be determ ned.
Okay. Because, and | think this came up a | ot at
the January 4th hearing, you know, if an itemis
in the wong expense account, that's one thing.
But an expense is an expense, generally speaking,
for revenue requirements. So, the inpact is zero
or mnimal, is that what you're saying?
(O Brien) That's the expectation

Yes.
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193

A (Dawes) So, test year inpacts would be what is

shown. But, certainly, if you're doing a known

and measur abl e, you need to escal ate, whether
it's labor, non-Ilabor, that still needs to be
det erm ned what those inpacts are.
Q Ckay. And that's what the -- the statenment
about the "different escalation factors"
pertains to?
[Wtness Dawes indicating in the affirmative].
And you haven't done that cal cul ati on?

(O Brien) We have not.

o > O >

Ckay. So, simlarly, on Adjustment Number 8,

this is a $243,000 adjustnent, also discovered in

Decenber 2023. And this says that an item was
recorded to Account 920, which, again, is an

adm ni strative expense account. And it says

"however subsequent review determ ned that the

bal ance shoul d have been recorded to vari ous

income statement FERC accounts", but they're not

identified.

Do you know which income statenent FERC

accounts this should have been put into?

A (O Brien) Between A&G and O&M, it was just nor

e

t han one or two list. W do have that, though.
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Q I'"'msorry, | didn't understand that answer. So,
do you know what accounts they should have been
put into?

A (O Brien) Not off the top of my head. But we --
but, as a conmpany, we do have that information,
yes.

Q Ckay. You have the information, but you didn't
provide it, and you don't know what it is?

A (O Brien) Not off the top of my head, | do not

know what it is.

Q Okay. But you know it's an expense account?

A (O Brien) Yes. It was through various expense
accounts.

Q Ckay. Because it says "various incone statenent
accounts”, |I'm curious whether or not it's

possi bl e these should have been mapped to revenue
accounts, which would also be income statenment
accounts, correct?

A (O Brien) | would need to get back --

[ Court reporter interruption.]

BY THE W TNESS:

A (O Brien) Sorry. | do not know off the top of ny
head, no.

BY MR. DEXTER:
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Ckay. And, then, if we jump down to Item

Number 9, again, we're tal king about itenms that
went to 920, but a "subsequent review determ ned
t hat the bal ance should have been recorded to
various income statement FERC accounts."™ Again,
those accounts aren't specified. So, it's

possi ble they could be revenue accounts?

(O Brien) It's possible.

Okay. And, then, Item Number 10, you say the
item went to "920", but it should have gone to
"Account 921". So, there you have the specific
account. Mhat's "Account 921"7?

(Dawes) I1t's another Adm nistrative & Gener al
account, but it's not salaries.

Okay. And that's why the escal ation factor could
play into quantifying the revenue requirenment

I npact ?

(Dawes) Correct.

Ckay. Now, | think |I heard the panel say that
these were discovered in Decenmber 2023. How were
t hese discovered, and what pronpted their

di scovery in 2023, in December of 2023?

(O Brien) So, we discussed the "999 account”, and

| believe Ms. Read mentioned it earlier as well.
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So, when our systemis deriving our FERC

regul atory accounts, there are instances where it
sometimes goes to this 999 account, which we know
I's not a true regulatory account, and needs to be
cl eared and determ ned where the appropriate
regul atory account is. This is an exercise
that's done at each nont h-end. I n doing that
exercise, at the end of 2023, we performed an
anal ysis of the Account 999 bal ance, and

determ ned where the reclassification entries
were required. We got down to | believe it was
$7,000 or so, in that neighborhood, and

determ ned that Account 920 was the nost
appropriate |l ocations for those remaining

bal ances.

Throughout the audit and data requests,
we identified balances sitting in -- that were
part of that reclassification to 920, that were
| arger than the $7,000 that we had previously
identified, |eading us to understand that there
were offsetting debits and credits that netted
down to a small amount, but required further
analysis. So, through that additional analysis

t hat was conpleted in Decenber, these adjustnments
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were identified.

It's been a learning in the system
It's now something that we're capturing in each
nmont h-end, and have correct for 2023 as well.
So, were adjustments made on the books and
records of the Conmpany, by that | mean the
"general ledger", to reflect this discovery?
(O Brien) In December 20237
Well, that was going to be ny next question. M
first question was, were there adjustments made?
(O Brien) To which period?
Well, that's my question. So, first of all, when
you di scovered these errors --
(O Brien) We did not -- we did not reopen the
2022 general |edger. W have not reopened the
2022 general | edger.
Okay. So, let me start again, then. So, there
were four adjustnents that we just went over that
were discovered in 2023. So, ny sinmple question
first is, did that pronmpt Liberty to make
adjustnments on its general |edger to correct for
this discovery?
(O Brien) We have corrected, with regards to this

di scovery, as it's applicable to 2023. So, we
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Q

are not recording any 2022 expenses, for exanple,
in 2023.

No, | understand that. But you didn't -- you
made an adj ustnent in 2023, is what you're

sayi ng?

(O Brien) To correct any simlar issues rel ated
to 2023, yes.

Ckay. But not for these specific dollar amunts?
(O Brien) Not for -- no. These are for a prior
peri od.

Okay. Did you make any adjustment to the books
in 2024, when these were discovered?

(O Brien) These were discovered in 20237

Ri ght .

(Dawes) The books aren't open in 2024 yet. We're
still closing out 2023.

Okay. So, there's been no adjustnments made to

20 -- there are no books for 20247

(Dawes) Yes, and there won't be. These

adj ustnments won't be in 2024. Any of the mapping
updates or things that have been identified here
that apply to 2023 will be updated with the 2023
books and records at the end of the year.

Okay. And would the same be true of the various
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i ssues that were identified in FERC -- |I'm sorry,
in Audit Issue Number 1, the numerous, | call
t hem "numerous”, you said "they're not numerous",

t hose adjustments, those were nmade to the books
of 2023, do | understand that correctly?

(O Brien) So, simlarly, they were corrected in
2023, as they relate to 2023, for example, if
there was a change to a bal ance sheet account.
But there were no incone statement items from
2022, recorded in 2023.

Okay. So, for exanple, just to beat this to
death, sorry, Item Nunber 5, on Exhibit 5, the
total amount was $527, 000, that should have been
i n Account 920 -- that went to Account 920, but
shoul d have been to Account 593. No adj ust ment
in the anmount of $527,000 was made for this error
in either the books of 2022 or 2023, do |

under stand t hat ?

(O Brien) Not within our general |edger system
that is correct.

Okay. But, systematically, in other words, if
there was a problem then you nade a change to
the system so that this wouldn't happen again in

20237

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000199




N

S w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

200
Attachment A

[ WTNESS PANEL: Read| O Brien| Dawes]

o >» O >r

(O Brien) That's correct. And, if there were any
i nstances of an issue taking place in 2023, prior
to system corrections, those are manually
adjusted as well, to ensure the 2023 results are
accurate.

So, could you just say that |ast part again

pl ease?

(O Brien) So, if identify a root cause of a
system i ssue, for example, these -- if there was
a WBS that was set up, and it's settling to a 999
regul atory account, and we corrected that, say,
in June, if any charges were recorded to that WBS
prior to the correction in the system we would
record a manual journal entry to correct that.

Al right. Now, |I'mvery confused then. So,
when woul d the manual journal entry have taken

pl ace? What year's books would that have
affected?

(O Brien) Only the current year.

So, in that instance, 20237

(O Brien) Yes.

Okay. So, now, getting back to the issues that
were identified then in Audit |ssue Number 1,

t hose manual adjustments were made to the books,
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if I understand what you're saying, were nade to
the general |edger in 20237

(O Brien) As they apply to 2023, yes.

But not as they apply to 20227

(O Brien) That's correct. Not as they apply to
2022.

Ckay. I think |I understand. Thank you.

(O Brien) There are no 2022 transactions recorded
in 2023. If there are root cause issues, those
are -- those have been corrected in 2023.

(Dawes) Yes. And | would also just add, with
these so-called "999 accounts”, we have a nonthly
process that we put in place in '23, to provide
and make sure those are getting reconciled and

cl eaned out and put in the appropriate regul atory
accounts on a nmonthly basis.

Okay. So, M. Dawes, | think | heard you say
earlier that you expect that the 2023 books w |
nore closely match the FERC Form 1, well, now

you've drawn a distinction between "books" and

"FERC Form 1". So, now | have to change ny
questi on.

(Dawes) | don't think you need to change your
questi on.
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Q So, | think |I heard you testify earlier that, in
2023, the Company will require fewer adjustnments
fromthe general |edger to the FERC Form 1 t hat

It required in 2022. Did | understand that

right?
A (Dawes) Most definitely, yes. "' m sure there
will be some customary reclassifications that we

m ght do in the ordinary course. But nowhere
near the adjustnments that we made in 2023 for
2022.

Q Okay. So, would you say then that you think the
mappi ng i ssues that we've been tal king about are
| argely behind the Conmpany at this point?

A (Dawes) Yes.

MR. DEXTER: Okay. So, | have sone
nore questions about the slide show. It would
probably take about ten or fifteen m nutes.
Should | proceed or --

CHAl RMAN GOLDNER: | think so. Let's
nmove through all of your questions, Attorney
Dexter. Then, take ten or fifteen m nutes, and
then move to Attorney Kreis.

MR. DEXTER: Okay. Thanks.

BY MR. DEXTER:
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So, I'"'mlooking at the -- I'"'mcalling it a "slide
show', | guess it's Exhibit 6 [Exhibit 7?] that
tal ked about the SAP conversion. And |I'm on
Page 6 of 12.

MS. RALSTON: | think you're referring
to "Exhibit 7".

MR. DEXTER: "Exhibit 7". Thank you,

counsel .

BY MR. DEXTER:

Q

Exhibit 7. And there's a statenent at the
bottom in the tan box at the bottom of Page 6,
t hat says "one natural account” -- well, let nme
read the whol e thing. It says "Bal ance sheet &
revenue accounts - one natural account to one
regul atory account relationship via mapping."”
What does that mean?

(Read) I'Il take that question. So, if you go
to -- it's further explained in Slide Number 8,
t hat tal ks about the regulatory account
assignnment, where bal ance sheet and revenue
account are based on a direct mapping table in
SAP. So, a natural account is mapped to a
regul atory account, based on the regul atory body,

determ ned via the conmpany code and profit
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A

center, to determne the regul atory body
associated with the utility.

Okay. Now, back up to Page 6, there's a
statement at the top of that page, in a gray box,
and it says "Every transaction in SAP is
identified to a natural account and a regul atory
account." So, what does that nmean?

(Read) Every financial transaction in SAP has a
regul atory account -- sorry, excuse ne -- has a
natural account, and the regul atory account is
derived based on the tables created in SAP to
derive the regul atory account. But every
transaction is posted to both segnments.

Actually, it includes nmore segnments. But, nore
i mportantly, | think, for people in the hearing
today to understand, it's the regul atory account
and the natural accounts are recorded every tinme
a financial transaction is recorded in SAP.

OCkay. And | heard a couple of times that there
was a |l ot of testing done during the

I mpl enment ati on of SAP. Can you describe that --
well, first of all, where any of you on the panel
i nvolved in the testing?

(O Brien) Yes. Or, our teamdid the testing.
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(Dawes) No, | was not part of the detail test.
(Read) Yes. Me and my team under me were

i ncluded in the testing.

Okay. Can you describe the testing that took
pl ace?

(Read) Well, we tested all the processes within
SAP by putting in transactions in our test
environment, all the way down to a specific
scenario. So, as an exanple, entering tinme
sheets. So, we got enployees to record time
sheets, enter time data, recording it to
projects, WBSs, which is our Work breakdown
Structure, recording time to capital, versus
operating and expenses.

We did manual transactions. W
recorded vendor payments, invoices, POs, purchase
requisitions. After all that data is input into
the system we then run, as part of our nonth-end
cl ose process, we also tested the nmont h-end cl ose
process in SAP, where we closed out the books and
we run financial statenents.

And you did all that, as the nane inplies,
testing, before the October 1st "go live" date of

the system is that right?
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(Read) That's correct.

Did the tests reveal any of the mapping issues

t hat we've been tal ki ng about today?

(Read) We did find sone, we called them
"defects”, through the testing, where we would
see, through the mapping table, an incorrect
regul atory account was put in the table. So, we
woul d record a defect, and we would go into the
table and correct it.

Were they numerous or one or two, or do you

recal | ?
(Read) | don't recall exactly how many, but there
were some. It's not Iike we didn't see any

defects. We did see sonme that were corrected.
VWhat do you attribute -- to what do you attribute
the fact that the mapping issues that we've been
tal ki ng about were not caught by the testing, if
you will, identified by the testing?

(Read) Some exanples of incorrect mapping is
related to new data being created in SAP once
you're live. W did training, we did, you know,
provide a job aid to explain what -- because not
everybody in the organization could create

projects, WBSs. There's only certain individuals
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o >» O >

who are trained who have access to do that. From
our experience, what we have noticed through
these adjustments is these projects have been
created incorrectly once we were |live in SAP;

m ssing a profile settlement that didn't get
updat ed correctly or get created in the right
spot. So, that determ ned that there was a

m stake in creating the Work Breakdown Structure
once we were live in SAP.

Now, | think in your earlier testinmny, you said
something to the effect of you "took twel ve of

bal ances for 2021 and nine nmonths of bal ances for
2022 in the old system and you transferred those
over to the new system " Do | have that right --
(Read) Correct.

-- simplistically?

(Read) Yes.

Ckay. Did you identify any issues in the
transfer of those historic balances, 2021 and the
first nine nonths of 2022, did the testing
identify any problems with the transfer of those
bal ances?

(Read) So, | will say, fromthe review and the

bal anci ng, because we had to bal ance the trial

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}

000207




N

& w

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

208

Attachment A
[ WTNESS PANEL: Read| O Brien| Dawes]

bal ance in both systenms, we needed to verify and
conpare the net income from both systenms were
correct, we did identify sone differences where
we updated the mapping table, the data conversion
mappi ng table, to put the appropriate "SAP",

ei ther natural account or regulatory account.

And, then, we would reload the data to get the
bal ances correct.

So, on Page 9, there's an entry on the right-hand
side of the account that says "Primary Expense
Accounts”". And it says "House Allowance", and on
the right-hand side it says "Enployee Pensions
and Benefits-FERCE". MWhat is that? What's the
"House All owance"? What would this be recordi ng?
(Read) AlIl right, to be honest, | don't know what
exactly it's recording. MWhat this is showing is
what the mapping table | ooks |ike in SAP. You
woul d have the natural account, plus the
functional area, which functional area in SAP is
defined as a "Cost Center" and a "Wrk Breakdown
Structure”. Those two fields together will point
SAP to this primary expense derivation table, and
it will produce -- it would show you which

regul atory account the transaction would be
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post ed.

So, this is --

(Read) This is just an exanple of a mapping

t abl e.

Sure. But, under this exanple, "House Allowance"
ends up in "Enployee Pensions and Benefits", is
that how | read this?

(Read) That's, based on what the table is

showi ng, correct.

Okay. But that's what it's intended to
represent?

(Read) Correct.

Ckay. Anybody on the panel know what "House

Al | owance" is?

(Dawes) |I'"m assumng it's sone sort of benefit
that certain people get. Certainly, Erin and I
do not get that benefit. But I'm not famliar

with anyone in New Hampshire that has a housing
all owance. But it's just from-- it's an example
of showi ng how get from the natural account to
the regul atory account. That may exist in other
jurisdictions or in Corporate, |I'm not sure.

Okay. So, Slide 12 tal ks about adjustments that

were made to the 2022 bal ances for reporting
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adjustnments. This was -- this was to account for
the m smapping that occurred, despite the testing
t hat took place anyway, right? This is to
descri be what actually happened?

(O Brien) | think I can best answer that

guesti on.

So, Luisa explained the FERC derivation
tables in SAP. Those are automatically pulled,
however, in some cases, they can be overwritten
t hrough a manual journal entry.

So, if | take us back to January of
2023, we cl osed our books and records, went
t hrough our normal year-end cl osing process.

Much of that work is around the natural accounts,
whi ch represents our U.S. GAAP reporting for our
parent conpany, which is in public conpany
reporting. And, following the conpletion of that
wor k, we nmoved to the regul atory account analysis
for the preparation of the FERC Form 1 and the
revenue requirenment.

I n preparing that information, we
identified that net income froma regul atory
account perspective was very different froma

U. S. GAAP perspective, which we wouldn't expect
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to see. This was new to us in the new system
We explained that the -- in the | egacy system we
had one GL account. There was one account, and
that determ ned both our U S. GAAP and regul atory
reporting results. In the new system there are
two accounts; our natural account, representing
our U.S. GAAP results, and the regul atory
account, representing the FERC accounts and our
regul atory reporting.

So, when we began to prepare our FERC
Form 1, and identified that net incone was
different between the U S. GAAP and the
regul atory results, we quickly identified that
that didn't nmake sense. W don't expect to have
GAAP to FERC differences in our results. That's
what |l ed us to conplete this detailed review.
And the timng of that is what drove it not being
included in our 2022 SAP general | edger, because
of when it was performed, we weren't able to
reopen the books at that time.

So, this slide is discussing that
det ail ed anal ysis that was done to identify those
corrections. All of the transactions were in the

system So, it's all of the same SAP
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transactions that were in our results. It was an
I ssue of geography and understandi ng where those
transactions should have been recorded, to ensure
that the regulatory results were accurate.

So, we heard this at the January 4th hearing

al so, about geography. You would agree that an
entry, a transaction, if it doesn't end up in the
ri ght account, represents a m stake or a problem
correct? | mean, if a transaction ends up in an
i ncome statement account, when it was supposed to
go to a bal ance sheet account, there's really no
confort in the fact that the transacti on was
there, if it ended up in the wong place, right?
Or, am |l m ssing sonmething?

(O Brien) In these cases, it was in the correct

| ocation, froma U S. GAAP reporting, and that's
where our analysis began. Now, we are smarter in
the system and aware that we need to be doing
this regul atory account analysis in conjunction
with the GAAP analysis. That was not something
that we were aware of in January of |ast year
Okay. Well, that didn't really answer ny
question, though. If you've got a transaction on

your books, but it ends up in the wrong account,
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that's a problem that needs to be dealt with.

Woul d you agree with that?

A (O Brien) Yes, which is what we did.

MR. DEXTER: Okay. All right. Thanks.
That's all the questions | have.

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. Given the
| ate hour, let's take a very brief break,
returning at 3:20, with the Office of the
Consumer Advocate. Off the record.

(Recess taken at 3:11 p.m, and the

hearing reconvened at 3:24 p.m)

CHAI RMAN GOLDNER: Okay. We'll go back
on the record, and resume with Attorney Kreis,
and t he OCA.

MR. KREI'S: Thank you, M. Chairman.

Good afternoon, Liberty w tnesses. |
don't plan on taking up too nmuch of your time,
because | want to throw you to the wolves up on
the Bench as quickly as | possibly can. But | do
have a few questi ons.

BY MR. KREI S:
Q My first question is, as among the three of you,
whi ch of you is the highest ranking person in

Li berty Utilities?

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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(Dawes) Well, --

(Read) | think Peter is --

(Dawes) -- |'m not sure.
(Read) -- probably equival ent.
(Dawes) Yes, | think so.

(Read) We both have "Vice President"” titles. So,
and Peter is in the region, and I'"'min the
Cor porate Head Office. But --
(Dawes) You know, we both report to Vice
Presi dents or higher in Corporate.
Okay. | think, because | really enjoy the
Canadi an accent, I'm going to ask my questions of
Ms. Read. And, hopefully, she'll be able to
answer them

| was taking a breeze through the 2022
Annual Report of Al gonquin Power & Utilities
Cor poration, which, of course, is the ultimte
parent conmpany of the utility that is under
exam nation here today.

And | noticed, on Page 63 of that
Annual Report, which, by the way, is the |atest
one that has been published, since |I assune the
2023 Annual Report is not ready, it being only a

few days after the end of 2023. And, so, there's
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a section there, on Page 63, that is titled
"Technol ogy Infrastructure | nplenmentation Risk".
And 1'm going to read you a sentence fromt hat
section of the Algonquin Power & Utilities Corp.
Annual Report.

It says "AQN', which is the

abbreviation they use for "Algonquin", "and
certain of its subsidiaries are in the process of
updating their technol ogy infrastructure systens
t hrough the inmplementati on of an integrated
customer solution platform which is expected to
i nclude customer billing, enterprise resource
pl anni ng systens, and asset managenent systens.”
So, ny question for Ms. Read is, is
what they're tal king about there the sane thing
that you' ve been tal king about here, that | think
you've called "Customer First"?
(Read) That is correct.
| ndeed. So, the next sentence of the Annual
Report says "The inplenmentation of these systens
I's being managed by a dedicated team ™ And |
realize you didn't wite the Annual Report,
presumably, and m ght not have even read it, but

would it be fair for me to infer that, by

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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Q

"dedi cated teanl', they're not necessarily talking
about the degree of dedication to the Conpany of
that team but the fact that that team has been
assembl ed and specifically assigned to focus on
that project? That's what they nmean by

“dedi cated", right?

(Read) That is correct.

Yes. And, so, the next sentence says "Foll ow ng
successful pilot inmplenmentations, deploynment
began in 2022, and is expected to occur in a

phased approach across the enterprise through

2024. "

Now, that sentence is fromthe Annual
Report for 2022, and sone time has gone by. I's
that still a true statement, about the parent

conmpany's intention as to the whole project, with
reference to the timeline in particular?

(Read) That is correct. The Customer First
system i npl ement ati ons that have been done at

Al gonqui n, the parent conpany, isS across siXx, we

call them "rel eases". Our | ast rel ease is
expected to go live in February, this year, in
2024.

So, in that continuum starting with the pil ot

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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program and ending with whenever this project is
over, where does Granite State Electric's fall?
Li ke, was it the first operating subsidiary that
you did this with, or was it the |last one, or is
it somewhere in the m ddl e?

A (Read) I'd probably say it's somewhere in the
m ddl e. Because we had New Hanpshire was our
first one, then we had Corporate, Georgia, and
St. Lawrence Gas were our second one.

| believe New Hanpshire was our third

rel ease that we worked on.

A (Dawes) Sorry, just to clarify. Massachusetts

was the first.

(Read) Massachusetts. Thank you.

A (Read) Massachusetts, right.

A (Dawes) You said "New Hampshire".
A (Read) I'"m sorry.

Q Yes.

A

Q

Thank you. So, you started with Massachusetts,
and then Granite State Electric, which is our
affiliate here, was the third.

The next sentence from the Annua
Report says "The inplenment” -- well, let me,

before I go there. |Is Granite State Electric the

{DE 23-039} [Day 2 - Motion to Dism ss] {01-23-24}
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only operating subsidiary that's part of this
project that is doing a rate case at the sane
time?

(Dawes) That woul d not be yours to answer, Luisa.
(Read) Yes. I'msorry. | would defer to others
on the Liberty teamto answer that question.

Does anybody on the panel know the answer?
(Dawes) So, we're obviously in the mdst of the

EnergyNorth rate case, --

Ri ght .
(Dawes) -- as you well know. We're in the late
stages of a rate case for New York Water. They

went live with SAP in Novenber of '22. But they
went from SAP to SAP. So, a little easier
I mpl ementation. They're going from an ol der
| egacy system

Gas New Brunswi ck just finalized a rate
case, and they're filing another one in the
com ng weeks, | believe. A little different
regul atory structure in New Brunsw ck.

In Georgia, there's an annual, it's
called the "GRAM' mechanism the "Georgia Rates
Adj ust ment Mechanisnmi'. It's kind of a very

prescriptive rate filing. But they do that
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annually. And we just reached settlement in
their nmost recent GRAM fili ng.
So, you have various rate proceedi ngs ongoi ng.

(Dawes) Yes, we do.

But it sounds |ike, and please correct me if I'm
wrong, the New Hampshire affiliates, meaning
Granite State Electric and -- | always forget the
name of the gas affiliate.

(Dawes) EnergyNorth.

EnergyNorth, thank you. Are those the only two
affiliates that have filed rate cases in which
the test year is also the year that SAP was

I mpl ement ed?

(Dawes) No. So, New York Water would have been a
test year 2022, with two nonths in new system
ten months in | egacy. Georgiais alittle
different, like | said. | mean, it's somewhat of
a forward-|ooking test year, but some of it was
SAP, some of it not. And New Brunswick is a
conpl etely forward-1ooking test year, with nuch
|l ess reliance on "regulatory" accounts than we
have in other conpanies.

So, that sort of anticipates my next question,

which | guess, M. Dawes, you can answer, since
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you seemto be the nost know edgabl e about this
stuff.

Did those rate cases -- have those rate
cases experienced the same degree of difficulties
arising out of the transition into the SAP system
that our rate case -- that at least this rate
case here, in New Hanpshire, has experienced?
(Dawes) No. But it doesn't nmean they were
necessarily wi thout some chall enges. But
certainly not the extent of the adjustments that
we made here.

I think Georgia had sonme chall enges,
because it's very prescriptive what the regul ator
wants. They want to see things a certain way.

So, to get the old accounts to the new accounts,
It took a ot of work. So, that was chall enging.
We were able to overcone it, but it took a |ot of
wor K.

And New York Water did have sone
chall enges with some of the regul atory
accounting. But | think we're getting pretty
close to finalizing that case. So, nothing
significant that would inmpact the outcone of that

case.
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So, do you have a theory about why it is that we
had so nmuch trouble here, in New Hampshire, when
those affiliates, the process went more snoothly,
apparently?

(Dawes) Yes. So, | think one of the issues, and
Erin can certainly chime in, is we have a service
conpany in New Hanpshire, which we don't have a
servi ce conmpany anywhere else. So, transactions
come into the service conpany, they then get what
we call "settled"” or "pushed down" to the
operating utilities.

So, sonme of the issues that we ran into
were the setup of the service conpany settl ement
rules, how the costs then got pushed down to the
regul atory accounts. We didn't have that issue
with our other utilities, because they don't have
the service conpany.

Moving on to the next sentence, | guess |'I]|
stick with M. Dawes, since he seens to be on a
roll. The next sentence of the Annual Report
that | was reading from before says "The

I mpl enment ati on of such technol ogy systens wil
require the investment of significant financial

and human resources."” And, then, the next
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sentence after that says "Di sruptions, delays, or
deficiencies in the design, inplenmentation, or
operation of these technol ogy systens, or

I ntegration of these systems with other existing
i nformation technol ogy or operations technol ogy
could: Adversely affect the Conpany's
operations, including its ability to monitor its
busi ness, pay its suppliers, bill its customers,
and report financial information accurately on a
tinmely basis; lead to higher than expected costs;
|l ead to increased regulatory scrutiny or adverse
regul atory consequences; or result in the failure
to achieve the expected benefits."”

So, ny question about that sentence is,
basically, and | apologize if it comes across as
snarky, but would it be fair for ne to infer
that -- that the parent conpany, the ultimte
parent conmpany here, Algonquin Power & Utilities
Cor poration, warned its sharehol ders of exactly
the kind of regrettable situation that we're

experiencing here as a real possibility?

(Dawes) So, 1, like Ms. Read, was not part of
preparing the -- I'"massumng this is part of the
MD&A for Al gonquin. |1'massumng that's the part
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of the document. MWhich has a |ot of requirenments

from